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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Report on the Financfal Stalements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Progressive Bancom, Inc. and its
Subsidiaries {the Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 » 2017 and
2016, and the related consolidated statements of Income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’
equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financlal statements

(collectively, the financial statements).

Management’s Responsibliity for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounfing principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this Includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of intemal controf relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted

our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audlt svidence about the amounts and disclosures In the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolldated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the antily's preparation and
falr presentation of the financial statements in order to deslgn audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecliveness of the entity’s intermnal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolldated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for aur
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present falrly, in all materiaf respects, the financlal
position of Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017 and 2018, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles

generaily accepted in the Unlted States of America.

PSSk us LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 28, 2018

THE FONER O BEMG DEOERETOGE
AUIIMT E X CORDVLT



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consclidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2017 and 2016
{Dollars In Thousands, Share Data)

2017 2016

Assots
Cash and due from banks $ 7,883 § 10,631
interest-bearing deposits 10,854 ) 5,687

Total cash and cash equivalents 18,737 16,318
Time deposits in other financial insfitutions 100 4,827
Securities available for sale 35,980 31,845
Securities held to maturity 6,622 8,719
Loans held for sale 447 468
Loans, net 428,882 419,943
Premises and squipment, net 15,928 16,391
Bank owned life insurance 9,950 9,743
Other real estate owned 202 238
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,943 625
Other assets 6,790 8,187

Total assels $ 525581 § 517,104

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing
interest-bearing

Tofal deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank advaences
Notes payable
ESOP debt commitment
Junior subordinated debentures
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders' equity:

$ 180,710 $ 193,704

253,112 248,625
433,822 442,379
24,358 9,221
5,510 6,400
234 357
12,372 12,372
4,087 4470
480,353 475,148

Common stock; $5 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; 520,672 and

521,772 shares issued at December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively 2,603 2,609
Paid-in capital ) 13,503 13,424
Retained eamings 33,958 30,481
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (221) {1486)
Uneamed ESOP shares {234) (357)
Treasury stoek, at cost, 72,748 and 70,961 shares at December 31, 2017 and

2016, respectively 382 4,068

Total stockholders’ equity 45, 41,955

Total liabllities and stockhoiders’ equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

L3 526581 § 517104




Progressive Bancorp, inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

(In Thousands)
2017 2016
Interest income:
Loans, inciuding fees $ 21,299 $ 20,278
Becurities:
Taxable 463 430
Nontaxable 162 174
Interest-bearing deposits 180 148
Other 15 14
22,119 21,044
Interest expense:
Deposits 874 644
Federal Home Loan Bank advances, FNBB Note Payable and other ™ 540
Junior subordinated debentures 509 448
2,254 1,630
Net Intarest income 19,865 19,414
Provision for loan losses 144 20
Net Interest income after provision for loan losses 19,721 19,394
Noninterest income:
Senice charges and fees 2,677 2,628
Trust and brokerage department 884 211
Eamings on life insurance policies 208 210
Insurance commissions 13 36
Gain (Loss) on sale of other real estate owned 18 (4)
Other 88 76
3,894 3,855
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 16,314 10,631
Occupancy 1,755 1,873
Fumiture and equipment 640 654
Technology 1,208 1,286
Professional fees 1,168 1,285
Advertising and business development 77 B26
ATM/debit card expense 443 528
Deposits Insurance assessment 142 189
Loss on sale of assets 5 2
Other 1,045 1,088
17,435 18,362
Income before income taxes 6,180 4,887
2,742 1,547

Income tax expense

Net income

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$ 3438 ¢ 3,340



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

{In Thousands)
2017 2016
Net income 3438 § 3,340
Other comprehensive loss, before tax:
Change in net unrealized loss on securities available for sale (59) (221)
Other comprehensive loss, bafore tax (59) {221)
Income tax benefit 20 75
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (39) (148)
Comprehensive income 3399 $ 3,194

See notes to censolidated financial statements.
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

{(In Thousands)
_2017 2016
Cash fiows from oparating activities:
Net income: $ 3438 § 3,340
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 846 876
Deferrad income tax (bensfit) expense 682 {18)
Stock compensafion expense 128 159
Amortizetion of securities, net T0 78
Provision for loan loss 144 20
Net decrease (increase) In loans held for sale 21 (31)
Loss on disposal of premises and equipment 5 2
Earnings on life Insurance policles {208) {211)
Wirite-down of other real estate owned L 134
{Gain) lozs on sale of other real estate owned {16) 4
Net change in other assets 702 (887)
Net change in other [fabilities {413} (516)
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,438 2,951
Cash flows from Investing activities:
Purchases of securities available for sale {14,988) (7.075)
Purchases of securilles hald ta maturity - {3,429)
Proceeds from maturities, calls and paydowns of securities avallable for cale 10,648 2,759
Proceeds from matunities, calls and paydowns of securities held to maturity 2,074 2,168
Purchases of premisas and equipment (398) {663)
Proceeds from the sale of pramises and equiprment 7 -
Net (purchases) redemptions of Federal Home Loan Bank stock {1,283) 268
Net {increase) decrease In loans (8,083) 13,328
Net malurities (purchases) of time deposits with other financlal Institutions 4,727 (4,727)
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 18 138
Net cash {used In) provided by Inveating activities (8,338) 2,765
Cash fiows from financing activities:
Net decrease in deposits (B,508) (1,978)
Net increase (decrease) in FHLB advances 15137 {3,772
Net {decrease) increass In note payable {890) 6,400
Purchase of treasury stock (487) (44)
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options 118
Redemption of prefemred stock - {12,000)
Preferred stock dividend payments - {8)
Net cash provided by {used In) financing activities 5,109 (11,807)
Not Increase (decrease) in cash and cash squivalents 2,419 (6,081}
Cash and cash equivelents;
Beginning of year 16,318 22,409
End of year 18,737 16,318

See notes to consolidated financial stalements.



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidlaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of Progressive Bancorp, Inc. {Bancorp) and Subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as Company) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and to general practices within the banking industry.

Princlples of conselidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Bancorp and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Progressive Bank (Bank) and the Bank's wholly owned
subsidiary, Progressive Financial Advisors, LLC (PFA). All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Nature of operations: The Company is engaged in traditional community banking activities, which
include commercial and retail lending, deposit gathering, trust services and investment and liquidity
management activities. The Company's primary deposit products are demand deposits, money market
accounts and certificates of deposit, and its primary lending products are commercial business and real
estate, real estate mortgage and congumer loans with customers located primarily in and around
Winnsboro, Monree, West Monroe, Bossier City and Shreveport, Louisiana, and the surrounding areas.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with eccounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assels and liabililies at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses for the period. Accordingly, actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

A material estimete that is particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relates to the
determination of the allowance for loan losses. A significant portion of the Company’s loans are
collateralized by real estate and related assets located in local markets. Accordingly, the ultimate
collectability of the Company's Ioan portfolio is susceptible to changes in local market conditions.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and amounts due from banks. The Company nomally considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of less than ninety days to be cash equivalents. Cash fiows from loans

and deposits are reported net.

The Company is required to maintain reserve balances in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve
Bank to meet regulatory reserve and clearing requirements. The Company's required reserve was $0 at
both December 31, 2017 and 2018. The Company’s average balance held at the Federal Reserve Bank
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was approximately $14,300,000 and $22,559,000,

raspectively.
Time deposits In other financial institutions: Time deposits in other financial institutions mature within
three years and are caried at cost,

Investment securitles: Securities classified as available for sale are those that the Company intends to
hold for an indefinite period of time, but not necessarily to maturity. Any decision to sell a security
classified as available for sale would be based on various factors, including significant movements in
interest rates, changes in the maturity mix of the Company’s assets and liabilities, liquidity needs,
regulatory capital considerations, and other similar factors.

Securities available for sale are reported at fair value with unrealized gains or losses reported as a
separate component of other comprehensive income. The amortization of premiums and accretion of
discounts, computed by the interest method over their contractual lives, are recognized in interest

income.



Progressive Bancorp, inc. and Subsidlaries
Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements

Note41.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continusd)

Debt securities for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported
at cost, adjusted for premiume and discounts that are recognized in interest income using the interest

method over the period to maturity,

Real_t'zed gains or losses, determined on the basis of the cost of specific securities sold, are included in
earnings.

In estirmating other than iemporary impairment iosses, management considers (1) the lenath of time s
the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (Ziqtha financial cond(itiz:n and ngetar?tfet:rr:'n.le e
prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent of the Company fo retain its investment and whether it is more
likely than not the Company will be required to sell its investment before its anticipated recovery in fair
value. When the Company does not intend to sell the security, and it is more likely than not that it will not
have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis, it will recognize credit component of an other
than temporary impairment of a debt securfty in eamings and the remaining portion in other '
comprehensive income.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock: As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas (FHLB), the
(:om_pany is rqqulred to maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLB. FHLB stock does not have a
readily determinable fair vaiue as ownership is restricted and it lacks a ready market. As a resuit thig
stock is carried at cost and evaluated periedically by management for impairment. No impai ;

been identified during 2017 or 2018. paiment has

Loans held for sale: Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the
lower of aggregate cost or fair value, as determined by aggregate outstanding commitments from
investors or current investor yield requirements. Gains or losses on sales of mortgage ioans are
recognized based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related

mortgage loans.

Loang: Loans that management has the intent and ability to hoid for the foreseeable future or until
maturity or pay-off are reported at their outstanding principal balance adjusted for an allowance for loan
losses. Interest is accrued daily on the outstanding balances.

Fees and costs associated with originating loans are recognized in income generally in the period in
which the fees were received and the costs were incurred. Under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, such fees and costs should be deferred and recognized over
the life of the loan as an adjustment of yield. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2018,
management believes that not deferring such fees and costs, and amortizing them over the life of the
related loans does not materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

The accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when, in management's opinion, the borrower
may be unable to meet payments as they become due. Past due status is based on the contractual terms
of the loan, When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accnied interest is reversed. Interest income
is subsequently recognized anly to the extent cash payments are recsived. Loans are returned to acerual
status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments

are reasonably assured.



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Transfers of financial assets: Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales only when control
over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is desmed to be surrendered
when: {1} the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right to pledge
or exchange the assets it receivad, and no condition both constrains the transferee from taking advantage
of its right to pledge or exchange the assets it received, or provides more than a modest benefit to the
transferor, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets threugh
an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity or the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to
return specific assets. In addition, for transfers of a portion of financial assets {for example, participations
of loan receivables}, the transfer must meet the definition of a 'participating interest in order to account for
the transfer as a sale. Following are the characteristics of a 'participating interest":

# Pro-rata ownership in an entire financial asset.

¢ From the date of the transfer, ail cash flows received from the entire financial asset are divided
proportionately among the participating interest holders in an amount equal to their share of

ownership.

» The rights of each participating interest holder have the same priority, and no participating interest
holder's interest is subordinated to the interest of ancother participating interest holder. That is, no
participating interest holder is entitied to receive cash before any ather participating interest holder
under its contractual rights as a participating interest holder.

No party has the right to pledge or exchange the entire financial asset unless all participating interest
holders agree to pledge or exchange the entire financial asset.

Allowance for loan losses: The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan
losses charged to expense. Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management
believes that collectability of the principal is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the

allowance.

The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses on
existing loans, based on an evaluation of the collectability of loans and prior loss experience. This
evaluation also takes info consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the oan
portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specific problem loans, and current economic conditions that
may affect the borrower’s ability to pay. While.management uses the best informafion available to make
its evaluation, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if there are significant changes in
economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process,
periodically review the Company's allowance for loan losses, and may require the Company to make
adjustments to the allowance based on their judgment about information available to them at the fime of

their examinations.

A loan is considered impatred when it is probable, based upon current information and evenis, the
Company will not be able to collect all contractual principal and interest payments due in accordance with
the terms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans are accounted for at the net present value of expected
future cash flows, discounted &t the loan’s effective interest rate, the observable market price of the loan
or at the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Modifications that result in troubled

debt restructurings are also considered impaired.
Premises and equipment: Land is carried at cost. Buildings and improvements, fumiture, fixtures, and

equipment and vehicles are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization which are
computed principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,

g



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Other real estate owned: Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are to
be sold and are initially recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs at the date of foreciosure,
establishing & new cost basis. After foreciosure, valuations are periodically performed by management
and the real estate is subject to reevaluation based upon new estimates of fair value. Revenue and
expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in other noninterest

expense.

Comprehensive income: Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses,
gains and losses be included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as
unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the
equity section-of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, are components of
comprehensive income. Gains and losses on available for sale securities are reclassified to net income
as the gains or losses are realized upon sale of the securities. Other-than-temporary impairment charges
are reclassified to net income at the time of the charge.

Share-based payment: Share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock
options and restricted stock, are valued at fair value on the grant date and expensed over the applicable

vesting period.

Income taxes: The Company files a consolidated income tax return with its subsidiaries. Income tax
expense or benefit is aliocated on a separate retum basis.

Deferred taxes are provided using the liability method. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible
temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards if it Is more likely than not, based
on the technical merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences
between the reported amounts of assets and fiabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are
reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted for the effects of changes In tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

The Company files tax returns in all appropriate jurisdictions, which include a federal tax return and a
Louisiana state tax return. When and if applicable, potential interest and penalty costs are accrued as
incurred, with expenses recognized in interest expense and noninterest expense, respectively, in the
sfatements of income,

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, management has determined there are no uncertain
tax positions.

Falr value measurements: Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles, and requires certain disclosures about fair value
measurements. In general, fair values are based upon quoted market prices, where available, If such
quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon intemally developed modeis that primarily
use, as inputs, observable market-based parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that
assets and liabiltties are recorded at fair value. These adjustments may include amounts to reflect
counterparty credit quality and the Company’s creditworthiness, among other things, as well as
unobservable parameters. Any such valuation adjustments are applied consistently over time.

Reclassification: Certain amounts previously reported have been reclassified to conform to current
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported stockholder's equity or net

income,
10



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial $tatements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {Continued)

Subsequent events: In preparing these financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through March 28, 2017, the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to he issued.

Note 2. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

ASU 2014-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), ASU 2015-14, Revenus from
Conlracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date: ASU 2014-08 amends existing
guidance related to revenue from contracts with customers. The amendments state that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised gaods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. ASL 2014-08 affects entities that enter into contracts with customers to transfer goods or
sefvices or enter into contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets, unless those contracts are within
the scope of other standards. The Company’s revenue consists of net intersst income on financial assets
and financial fiabilities, which is explicitly exciuded from the scope of ASU 2014-09, and non-interest
income, As required by ASU 2014-09, we will adopt the new standard effective January 1, 2018,
However, we do not expect that the adoption of this guidance will result in any significant changes to our
methodology of recognizing revenue or have a material impact on our intemal controls over financial

reporting.

ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurerment of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilifies. The amendments in this Update address certain aspects of
recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial instruments. ASU 2018-01, among
other things, i) requires equity investments, with certain exceptions, to be measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in net income, (i) simplifies the impaimnent assessment of equity
investments without readily determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify
impairment, (i} eliminates the requirement for public business entities to distlose the methods and
significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required fo be disclosed for financial
instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet, (iv) requires public business entities to use
the exit price notion when measuring the fair value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes, (v)
requires an entity to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in
the fair value of a liabilify resulting from a change in the instrument specific credit risk when the entity has
elected to measure the liability &t fair value in accordance with the fair value option for financial
instruments, (vi) requires separate presentation of financial aseets and financial liabilities by
measurement category and form of financial asset on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to
the financial statements and (viii) clarifies that an entity should evaluate the need for a vaiuation
allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available-for-sale. This update will be effective for the
Company on January 1, 2018 and is not expected to have a significant impact {o the Company's financial

statements.

ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842} (ASU 2016-02). ASU 2016-02 establishes a right-of-use (ROU) mode!
thst requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for ail lsases with
terms longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification
affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement, The new standard is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years. A
modified retrospective transition approach is required for lessees for capital and operating leases existing
at, or entered into after, the beginning of the eerliest comparative period presented in the financial
statements, with certain practical expadients available, The Company does not expect this update to have
a material impact on the audited financial statements and related disclosures.

1



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial $tetements

ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses {Update to ASC 326). ASU 2016-13 amends existing
-standards for accounting for credit losses for financial assets. The update requires that the expected
credit losses on the financial instruments held as of the end of the period being reported by measured
based on historical experience, currant conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The
update also expands the required disclosures related to significant estimates and judgements used in
estimating credit losses, as well as the credit quality and underwriting standards of an organization's
financial assets. The update also amends the accounting for credit losses on available-for-sale debt
securities and purchased financial assets with credit deterioration. The update will be sffective for the
Company on January 1, 2021. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of the update on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2017-04, intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Update to ASC 350). ASU 2017-04 amends existing
guidance in evaluating goodwill for impairment. The update requires that an entity perform s annual or
interim goadwill test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, with any
impairment charges being recognized as the difference between the fair value ang carrying value, The
update is intended to standardize the impairment test for all business entities and also reducs the
complexity and cost of evaluating goodwill for impairment. The update is effactive for any annual or
interim goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The adoption of the
update is not expected to have a significant impact to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2017-08, Receivables — Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (Sublopic 31 0-20), Premium
Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities. The amendmenis in this update shorten the
amortization psriod for certain callable debt securities held at a premium. Specifically, the amendments
require the premium to be amortized to the earliest call date. The amendments do not require an
accounting change for securities held at a discount and the discount continues to be amortized to
maturity. This update will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2020 and is not expected fo have a
significant impact to the Company’s consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

ASU 2018-02, Reclassification of Cerlain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.
The amendments in this update allow reclassification from accumuleted other comprehensive income to
retained eamings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act which was signed into
law on December 22, 2017. The amendments also require certain disclosures about stranded tax effects.
This update will be sffective baginning January 1, 2019, with early adoption permitted, and the guidance
should be applied ether in the period of adoption or retrospectively to each period impacted by the
change in the U. S. federal comorate income tax rate from when the Tax Cuts and Job Acts i
recognized. The Company has early adopted the new guidance as of December 31, 2017. This resulted
in a cumulative effect adjustment to the consolidated balance sheet to reclass approximately $36
thousand of tax expense from accumulated other comprehensive loss to retained earnings.

Note 3. Statements of Cash Flows

The Company has chosen to report its cash flows by the indirect method. Suppiemental information on
cash flows and noncash investing and financing transactions for the years ended December 31, 2017 and

2016 is as follows (in thousands):

2017 2018
Cash transactions:
Federal income taxes paid $ 2100 $ 1,450
interest expense paid 3 . 2,058 § 1,552
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Noted.  Securities

Securities _have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets according to management’s intent.
The amortized cost of securities and their approximate fair values at December 31 . 2017 and 2016 are
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Gross 'Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Falr
Cost (ains Losses Value
Avallable for Sale
2017
ULS. treasury $ 7475 § - $ 28 § 7451
U.S. government agency obligations 21,081 - {220) 20,841
Agency rasidential mortgage-backed securities? 6,246 28 {32) 6,242
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations? 1,478 - (32) 1,446
$ 36280 § 28 % o 1308) 5 35980
2016:
US, treasury 5 400 § 4 § . 5 494
U.S. government agency obligations 24,227 31 {146) 24,112
Agency residential mortgage-backed sacurities! 5,152 34 (114) 5,072
Agency collaterafzed mortgage obligations? 1,888 - (32} 1,967
$ 31686 _§ 69 3 (282 § 3164
Held {o Matu
2017:
State and local municipals $ 8521 5§ 5 § (94) $ 6,482
Agency residential morigage-backed securities? 101 2 . 103
$ 662 § 57 $ (849 § 6565
2016: .
State and local municipals $ 6583 § 7% % (220) % 8,438
Agency residential morigage-backed securities! 136 4 “ 140
$ 5716 % 9. 8 __(20) § B5m

'Residential morigage-backad securities issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies or LS. governmant-

sponsored enterprises.
Colisteralized morigage obligations issued and/or guaranteed by LS. government agencies or .S, government-

sponsored enterprises.
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsldiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4.  Securities (Continued)

Unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by length of time that individual securities have bean ina
continuous unrealized loss position, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, are summarized as follows {in

thousands):

Value impairad
8 n 12 ot Longer Total
" Far Unrealzed  Far Unrezized  Farr Linrealzed

Description of Securkties Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Avallable for Sale
2017

U, S. treasury $6450 $ (24) & - 8 - $ 6450 5 (29

Li.8. government agency obligations 11,833 (83) 8,907 {137} 20,840 {220)

Agency residential mortgage-backed

securities’ 3,711 (32) - - 3711 (32)
Agency collateralized morigage

(32} 1,426 (32)

obligations? - - 1,426
$22004 § (138) $10,333 § (169) §a2427 § (208

2016:

U.S. government agency obligations $11.,930 $ (146) § - 5 - $11930 $ (148)
Agency residential morigage-backed

securities! 4,217 (114) - . 4,217 {114)
Agency colaleraized morigage

abligationa? 1817 {32) - - 1,917 {32)

$18064  § (282) $ - § - $18084 § (299)

Held to Matu
2017:

State and local municials $ 1640 $ (10} $ 2544 § (Bd) § 4234 § {84)
2016:

State and local munkipals 5 5010 $ (220) $ - 3 - $ 5010 § (220)

“Res idential morigage-backed securities issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies or 1).S. government-

sponsored enterprises.
*Collateralized mortgage obligations issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies or US, government-

sponsored enterprises,

For all of the above investment securities, the unrealized losses are generally due to changes in interest
rates and, as such, are considered to be temporary by the Company.

There were no sales of securities during the years ended December 31, 2017 or 2018.

Investment securities with a carrying value of $21,786,000 and $15,601,000 at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or permitted
by law.
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolldated Financlal Statements

Note 4. Securitles (Continued)

The amortized cost and estimated fair valus of investment securities at December 31, 2017, by
contractual maturity, are shown below (in thousands). Expected maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties. Residential mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations
are shown separately since they are not due at a single maturity date.

Auwgllable for Sale Held to Maturity
Amortized  Estimated  Amortized  Estimated
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or iess $ 11999 $ 1195 § 501 $ 501
Due from one year through five years 16,537 16,326 2,881 2,879
Due from five 10 fen years - - 2,273 2,209.
Due after ten years 20 21 866 894
28,566 28,312 6,521 6,483
Residential mortgage-backed securities
and collateralized mortgage obligations 7,704 7,668 101 102

$ 36260 § 35980 $ 6622 § 6585

Note 5. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

To detesmine an appropriate allowance for loan losses, managerment sebarahs loans into separate
categories based on similar risk characteristics. These categories and their risk characteristics are
described below;

Commercial, financial and agricultural Joans: This category consists of all business loans and
leases secured by assets other than real estats. It also includes Ioans for agriculture crop production
and recreational agriculture loans secured by the subject property and/or membership interest. A
substantial majority of these loans are secured by squipment, accounts receivable and inventory, The
primary risk involved with this category is that the loans and leases are typically secured by
depreciable assets that may not provide an adequate source of repayment if the loan goes into
default. However, management believes the Bank’s conservative underwriting standards and credit
culture help keep loan losses low.

Commoercial real estate: This category consists of loans secured by both owner-occupied and non-
owner occupied commercial real estate properties and reprasants the largest category of the Bank's
total loan portfolio. A majority of the loans in this category are secured by non-owner occupied
commercial properties such as hotels/motels, nursing homes, office buildings and retail strip centers.
Loans secured by agricultural land are also included in this category. The remainder of this segment
is secured by commercial real estate whers the borrower occupies the real estate and uses it to
conduct their business. The non-owner occupied portion of this category presents the most credit risk
given the reliance on third-party rental incoma to service the regular payment but overall credit rigk is
considered low. A substantial majority of these loans have secondary sources of repayment through
financially strong guarantors that are well known to the Bank. Loan losses in this category have been

minimal.
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Progressive Bancorp, In¢. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements

Note 5.  Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

>

Residentlal real estate: This category consists of loans secured by some form of both owner-
occupied and non-owner occupied residential rea! estate. The category includes loans for 14 family
home construction, home improvement, home equity lines of credit and ¢closed-end financing for 1-4
family properties. Mortgage loans held for sale on the secondary market are excluded from this
category. Losses in this category, compared to the industry, have been relatively minimal. The Bank
does not originate sub-prime mortgage loans. The higher risk area of this category is the non-owner
occupied partion of these loans which are often reliant on rentaf income as the primary source of

repayment,

Construction and land development: This category consists of loans secured by vacant land,
which includes developed commercial land, undeveloped commercial iand, single family residential
lots, and lot development loans. These loans can carry a higher degree of risk because vacant land
can be harder to sell if it is forecloged upon. These types of loans require larger cash investments to
reduce the riek. Historically, the losses have been low due fo the Bank's conservative underwriting
standards,

Muiltifamily residential properties: This category consists of loans secured by residential dweilings
with more than four units. The loans are typically smaller apartment complexes or townhome projects,
and are to borrowers that have an established history with the Bank. The primary risk in this category
is that repayment is based on the occupancy level of the dwellings and the financial capacity of the

tenants.

Consumer loans and other: This category of loans consists of all other forms of consumer debt,
including automobiles, recreational vehicles, debt consalidation, household or parsonal use,
education, taxes, mobile homes, personal lines of credit and overdrafts. Overdrafts-are deposit
accounts that become unsecured loans when overdrawn by the deposit customer, Overdrafis are
monitored by account officers on a daily basis and are often cleared within 3 very short period of time,
It is bank policy to charge off any overdrafts that remain outstanding for more than 45 days.

18



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 5.  Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses {Continued)

Loans by portfolio segment and class consisted of the following at December 31, 2017 and 20186 (in
thousands):

2017 2018
Commercial, financial and agricultural:
Commercial and industrial 3 83,937 $ 106,724
Agricultural 3,698 4,385
Commercial real estate:
Cwner occupied nonfarm, nonresidential 34,162 36,923
Other nonfarm, nonresidential properties 128,717 115,022
Farmiland 7,351 4,102
Residential real estate:
1-4 family residential first liens 88,151 81,011
14 family residential second liens 1,558 1,638
Home equity lines of credit 14,708 13,750
Construction and land development 39,774 41,605
Multifamily 12,444 12,791
Consumer loans and other loans 8,287 6,998
433,787 424,929
Allowance for loan losses (4,805) {4,986)

$ 428882 $ 419,943
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Progressive Bancorp, inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continuad)

The following table presents loans identified as impaired by class of loans as of December 31 , 2017 and
20186 (in thousands):

Unpaid Recorded Racordad

Contractual vesiment invesiment  Total Average
Frincipal WithNo Wih  Recorded Related Recorded
Balince Alowance Afswance hvestment Alowance hvesiment

2017:
Commerclal, financial and agriculturak
Commercial and industrial 5 82 § 33 § 48 § &2 § 13 $ o4
Agricukural 7 7 - 7 = 22
Commerclal real estate:
Ow her oceupied nonfarm, nonreskiential 58 58 - 58 - 70
Farmiand - - -
Residential resl estate: -
1-4 family residential first lens 1,013 583 430 1,013 87 1,098
1«4 famiy residential second liens 59 59 - 53 - 85
Home equity Ines of credit - - - - - -
Consiruction and land development 326 328 - 328 - 235
Consumer loans and other loans - - - - - -
- : 3 L 8.&3511'_
2016:
Commerclal, financial and agricultural:
Commerclal and indusirial $ - $ - H - $ . $ - $ -
Agricultural 181 187 - 181 - 255
Commercial real estate;
Ow ner occupied noifarm, nonresidential - - - - . -
Farmiand - - . - . 4
Residential real estate;
1-4 family residential first lens 190 177 13 180 13 261
1=4 family residential second llens 30 30 - a0 - 35
Home equily Bnes of credit - - - - - -
Construction and land development 290 280 - 290 - 339

Congumer loans and other lbans - -

Interest income recognized on impeired loans was insignificant in 2017 and 2016, A loan is considered a
troubled debt restructuring (TDR) if the Company, for economic or legal reasons related to a debtor's
financial difficulties, grants a concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider, Concessions
granted under a TDR typically involve a temporary or permanent reduction in the interest rate at less than
a curent market rate of interest or an extension of a loan’s stated matusity date. Loans classified as
TDR’s are designated as impaired. Impaired loans totaling approximately $1,1 27,933 and $214,753 were
accounted for as troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. There
were no TDR's that defaulied during the years 2017 and 2048.
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Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 5. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The following table presents the past due aging of the recorded investment in foans and loans on
nonaccrual s of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Loans Loans 80 or
Current  30-8% Days More Days Total Past
Past Due Past Due Due Loans and Accrulng

More Days Nonaccrual

Total
Loans

Loans
2017:
Commercial, financial and agricultural;
Commerclal and industrial § 99,758
Agricultural 3,698
Commerclal real estate;

Ow ner octupied nonfam, nonresidential 34,046
Cther nonfarm, nenresidantial properties 123,717

3433758 _§ 1193

= & B ¥ ¥
LI T )

$ 99,937
3,698

34,162
123,717
7,351

88,1561
1,568
14,708
39,774
12,444
8,287

, 187

Farmiand 7,351
Residentlal real estate:

1-4 family residential first fens 87,811

1-4 famly residential second lisns 1,556

Home equity ines of credit 14,708
Construction and land development 39,774
Muliif amily 12444
Consumer loans and other kans 8,287

20186:

Commercial, financlal and agricutturat

Commercial and industrial $ 106,662

Agricultural 4365
Commercial real estate:

Ow ner occupied nonfarm, nonresidentsl 36,623

Other nonfarm, nonresidentlal properfies 115,022

Farmiand 4,102
Residential real estate:

1-4 family residential firsi bens 80,840

1-4 family residential second bens 1,638

Home equily ines of credit 13,750
Construction and land development 41,605
Multifamily 12,791

L I §

$106,724
4,365

36,923
115,022
4,102

81,011

1638
13,750
41,605
12,791

Consumer loans and other loans 6,988 -
$424716 & 68 % 147 & 213 3 i $ 190 5424999

Credit quality Indicators: The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant
information about the ability of borrowers o service their debt such as: current financial information,
historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends,
among other factors. The Company analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk.
Loans classified, internally or by regulatory authorities, as substandard, special mention or pass watch
and past due loans are reviewed regularly by the Company to determine if appropriately classified or to

determine if the loan is impaired. The Company's loan portfolio is reviewed for credit quality on an annual
basis, with samples being selected based on loan size, credit grades, etc., to ensure that the Company’s

management is properly applying credit risk management processes.



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidlaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Loans excluded from the scope of the annual review process are generally classified as pass credits until:
{a) they become past due; (b) management becomes aware of deterioration in the credit worthiness of
the borrower, or (c) the customer contsacts the Company for a modification. In these circumstances, the
customer relationship is specifically evaluated for potential classification as to &pecial mention,
substandard or doubtful, or could even be congidered for charge-off. The Company uses the following
definitions for risk ratings:

¢ Pass: Loans included in this category are performing as agreed with reliable, current financial
information on the borrower. Pass loans are fully secured per policy guidelines or unsecured o & high
net worth individual with strong liquidity. Generally, loans in this category do not have material policy
exceptions, have slight to moderate leverage and are lacking in notable weakness.

* Pass watch: Loans included in this category may be showing some signs of financial deterioration or
apparent negative trends. Overdrafts or past due payments that are not mitigated or explainable may
result in a rating change from “pass” to "pass watch.” Loans that become 30 days delinquent may be
placed in this category. Other examples of loans that may be graded as "pass watch” include:
apparent weakness in management, loans restructured fo accommodate customer cash flow, loans
with a collateral shorifall which were not underwritten as unsecured, and agricultural loans with a cne

year carry-over.

= Special mention: Loans included in this category are currently protected but are potentially weak.
These loans constitute an undue and unwarranted credit risk but do not presently expose the Bank to
a sufficient degree of risk to warrant adverse classification. Close management attention is required.
New loans should not be made which will immedistely be identified in this category. As a general nule,
for the purpose of calculating a loan loss reserve, loans in this category will have the historical loss
reserve percentage applied and will remain in a pool with loans that are considered acceptable or
better when determining the general valuation reserves. Loans classified as special mention have
potential weaknesses that may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the
institution's credit position at some future date. Characteristics of loans in thig category may include:
loans with marginal debt service coverage without mitigating factors, loans with technical, unmitigated
default, loans that become 60 days delinquent, loans to a2 company where there is concem the
company may fail, loans with unmitigated collateral short-fall,

» Substandard: Substandard loans are inadequately protected by the curent net worth and financial
capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified must have & well-
defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt, They are characterized
by the distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Loss potential, while existing in the aggregate amount of substandard assets, does not have to exist
in individual assets classified as substandard. Loans in this category are evaluated individually as
outlined in the Bank's loan policy when determining the general valuation reserve. Examples of
substandard loans may include loans with debt service coverage below 1:1 without mitigating factors,
loans in default, work out loans, non-accrual loans, most loans that are 90 days delinquent and
agricultural icans with more than one-year carry-over unless fulty secured and documented with an

independent source of repayment.
» Doubtful: Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as

substanderd, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full
highly questionable or improbable, based on currently existing facts, conditions, and vaiues.
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Note 5. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses {Continued)

The following table presents the recorded investment in loans receivable (in thousands) by credit quality
indicator as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Pase Special

(Rating 1-5) Pass/Walch Mention Substendard Doubtful Totsl
2017:

Conmmercial, financial and agricukurak

Copmercial and industrial $§98281 § 1575 § - $ 81 - $ 99,937

Agricullural 3,231 467 - - 3,698
Commercial real estate:

Ow ner occupled nonfarm, nonresidential 32,714 1,156 - 292 » 34,162

Other nonfarm, nonreskiential properties 122,318 1,300 - - - 123,717

Farmiand 7.351 - - - - 7,351
Residential real estate:

1-4 family reskiential first liens 83,127 3,236 - 1,788 - 88,151

1-4 family resklential second liens 1,304 a7 - 187 - 1,558

Home equtty lines of credi 14,454 148 = 106 - 14,708
Canstruction and kand develbpmeant 38,752 28B4 - 738 - 36,774
Multifamiy 12444 - - - - 12,444
Consumsr loans and ather lsans 8,155 41 - a1 - 8,287

y 8| = 3 = §
2016:

Commercial, financial and agricuttural:

Commerclal and industrial $1050984 § 700 § 40 % - - $108,724

Agricuktural 4,184 - - 181 = 4,365
Commercial real estate:

Ow ner occupied nonfarm, nonresidential 36,240 1,339 - 284 - 36,923

Other nenfarm, nonresidential properties 114,375 647 - - - 115,022

Farmiand 4102 - - - - 4,102
Residential real estate:

1-4 famiy residential firs! fiens 78,303 1,743 - 2] - 81,011

1-4 family residential second kens 1,579 - - 59 - 1,638

Home equity lines of credit 13,750 - - - - 13,750
Construction and land development 40,604 am - 700 - 41,605
Nultfamily 12,761 - - - - 12,791
Consumer loans and cother loans 6,780 7 - 188 - 6,998

$4T7602_§ 4737 _$ 40§ 2387 - .
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Note 5. Loans and Allowance far Loan Losses {Continued)

The Company’s activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 by portfolio segment and disaggregated on the basis of the Company’s impaiment methodology is
as follows (in thousands);

Cammercial Comtruction Consumer
Financlal& Commerclal Residential & Land Loans B
Agricultural RealEetate RealEstate Development Multifamly OtherLosns Total

2017:

Balance st the beginning ot the yaar 3 2Zre 3 1782 § 2263 % 426 3% 65 % B 5 4,986
Provision cherged to eamings 7 62 <] 7 2 5 E'7}
Losns chargad te the allowance {58) (40) {8) &) . (80) (31)
Recovaeriss onloana praviously

charged-off - 2 45 - B 38 85

Balance &t the end of the year -I 226 § 1788 § 2248 $ 433 § 70 3 h<- I | 4,605

P eripd-ended amount aliocated to:

Individualty evaluated for impairment $ B $ - $ 87 & - H - ] - $ B0
Gollactively evalusted ¢ impairment 28 1796 2,81 _4_33 70 B2 4,825
Ending belance § 226 3 4758 5 2248 § 433 § 0§ B2 § 4805
Loans:
Individually evaiuated for impairment 3 80 & 58 % 138 &% 32k § - H - $ 1869
Collectively evaluated for inparment 03548 565,72 03,021 39448 12444 8287 43198
Ending balance § US835 § 85230 § 1MAY $ 30774 & TAA § B2BT § 433797
201%:

B alance at the beginning of the year ] " 3 1822 % 2208 § 491 § 88 § B 0§ 5,004
Provision chargad to samings 20 - - - - - 20
Laans chargedto the allowancs (57) {43) (43) {65) - {62) (270)
Recoveries on loans previously

chamged-off 1 a 0 - - 37 w2

Balance atthe end of the year $__277 § T2 § 2260 8 42 3 68 & W9 § 4968

P eriod-ended amouni aliocated to:

Individuslly evaluated forimpalrmeant $ - 3 - % B s - % - 8 - & B
Colleciivaly evaluated for impalrment 277 1782 2,250 426 88 B9 4973

Ending halsnce § 278§ 1762 § 2283 % 426 8 [T BE § 4988

Loans:

Individually svat.iated for impsirment L L - % 220 § 290 § - 8 - % 520
Collectively evalugted for Impalmant oro 56,047 96,178 41315 2™ 6,988 424 400
Ending balance $ M0S9 ' H6OAT § 96999 § 41806 % G701 5 6088 5 42dgen
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Note 6. Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following (in thousands):

2017 2018

Land $ 4749 § 4749
Buildings and improvements 14,487 14,487
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7,878 7.936
Vehicles 222 269
Construction in progress 180 39

27,526 27,480
Less accumulated depreciation (11,598) (11,088)

$ 15,828 § 16,391

Note 7. Deposits
Deposits at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following (in thousands):

2017 2018
Amount Percent Amount Percent
Neninterest-bearng demand accounts § 180,710 41.7% § 193,705 43.8%
interest-bearing checking accounts 38,226 6.8% 36,456 8.2%
Savings and Brited access money market accounts 135,803 3% 144,327 326%
Certificates of deposit less than $250,000 35,730 82% 30,005 6.8%
Certificates of deposit $250,000 and greater 39,917 9.2% 34,528 7.8%
ndividual retirement accounis less than $250,000 2,958 0.7% 2,747 0.7%
individual refirement accounts $250,000 and graaier 678 0.2% 651 0.1%

$ 433,622 100.0% $ 442320 100.0%

At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities of cerlificates of deposit and individual retirement
accounts were as follows {in thousands):

2018 $ 63,677
2018 12,299
2020 2,158
2021 833
2022 318
Thereafter N

$  79.263

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, brokered time deposits totaled approximately $11,019,000 and
$12,523,000, respectively, '
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Note 8. Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

The Bank receives advances from the FHLB of Dallas under note payable arangements with original
maturities ranging from two to fifteen years. Payments on these noles sre made monthiy. The weighted
average interest rate of all notes was 1.92% and 2.80% &t December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Scheduled maturities of the notes at December 31, 2017 are as follows (in thousands):

2018 3 15,259
2019 7,996
2020 617
2021 323
2022 163

$ 24,358

Along with the pledge of the Company’s investment in FHLB of Dallas stock, a blanket floating lien on
certain loans of the Company is pledged as additional collateral on the advances. The amount available
for additional advances under the Company's borrowing arrangement with the Federal Home Loan Bank
was approximately $187,513,000 at December 31, 2017.

Note 8. Other Borrowings

The Company has a federal funds line of credit with one unaffiliated financial institution in the amount of
$20,000,000. This line of credit matures on June 30, 2018 and is provided on an unsecured basis;
however, the lending institution may require the line to be fully secured after a stated number of days. The
Company also has a line of credit with another unaffiliated financial institution which is collateralized by
consumer ioans totaling approximately $5,032,000 at December 31, 2017. The borrowing capacity under
this line is approximately 80% of the outstanding loan balances, or approximately $4,421,000 at
December 31, 2017. This line of credit has no stated maturity date; however, it may be canceled at the
sole discretion of the fending institution. There were no outstanding borrowings under these lines at
Dacember 31, 2017 or 2016.

Note 10. Notes Payable

On January 19, 2016, the Company borrowed $7,000,000 from the First National Bankers Bank secured
by 100% of the outstanding common stock of Progressive Bank. The note is payable in monthly
installments of principal and interest, bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (4.50% at
December 31, 2017), and matures in January 2026, The Company may and has made additional
principal payments. The proceeds of the note were used to assist with the redemption of Preferred Stock
issued to the U.S. Treasury's Small Business Lending Fund. The Company must satisfy certain financial
covenants, none of which are expected to adversely impact the operations of the Company. Financial
covenants cover, among other things, the maintenance of minimum levels for regulatory capital ratios, a
maximum ratio of nonperforming loans to total loans and a maximum ratio of nonperforming assets to

primary capital,
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Note 10. Notes Payable (Continued)

The Company was in compliance with all covenants as of December 31, 2017. The outstanding balance
of the note was $5,510,000 as of December 31, 2017. Scheduled maturities of the note are as follows (in

thousands):

2018 $ 840
2019 840
2020 840
2021 840
2022 840
Thereafter 1,310

[ .5,510

Note 11. Junior Subordinated Debentures

Junior subordinated debentures are due to Progressive Statutory Trust | (Trust 1} and Progressive
Statutory Trust Il (Trust l1), 100% owned non-consolidated subsidiaries of Bancorp, The debentures were
issued in conjunction with the Trusts’ issuance of Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Trust
Preferred Securities. With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid
interest on the Debentures are subordinated in right of payment t the prior payment in full of all senior
indebtedness of the Company. The interest is deferrable on a cumulative basis for up to 20 consecutive
quarters. The debentures bear the same interest rate and terms as the trust preferred securities

discussed below.

On .July 31, 2001, Bancorp, through a private placement, issued $8,000,000 (8,000 shares with a
liquidation amount of $1,000 per security) of Variable Rate Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities {TruPS)
through a newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiary, Progressive Statutory Trust | (Trust ). Bancorp made a
required equity contribution of $248,000 to form Trust 1. Trust | invested the total proceeds from the equity
contribution and the securities sale in Variable Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures (the Debentures)
issued by Bancorp. The net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures were used to contribyte capital o
the Bank and for general corporate purposes. The terms of the TruPS are such that they qualify as Tiar |
capital under the Federal Reserve Board's regulatory capital guidelines applicable to bank helding
companies on a consolidated basis.

With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid interest on the
Debentures are subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior and subordinated
indebtedness of Bancorp. Interest on the Debentures is payable quarterly commencing October 31, 2001
at a rate equal to the three-month LIBOR rate plus 3.58% (5.35% and 4.47% at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively}. The interest is deferrable on a cumulative basis for up to 20 consecutive quarters. No

principal payments are due until maturity on July 31, 2031.

On July 31, 2006, the Debentures became redeemable, in whole or in par, at the option of Bancorp.
None of the Debeftures have been redeemed. In the event the Debentures are redeemed, a like amount
of TruPS will be redeemed at the redemption price of $10, pius accrued interest to the date of
redemption. Trust I's obligations under the TruPS are fully and unconditionally guarantsed by Bancorp.
Any redemption is subject to Bancorp oblaining the prior approval of the Federal Reserve. The
debentures balance related to Trust | is $8,248,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, Under ASC Topic
810, Trust | does not meet the criteria for consolidation.
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Note 11.  Junior Subordinated Debentures (continued)

On September 20, 2007, Bancorp, through a private placement, issued $4,000,000 {4,000 shares with a
liquidation amount of $1,000 per security) of Fixed/Floating Rate Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities
(TruPS i) through a newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiary, Progressive Statutory Trust I (Trust H).
Bancorp made a required equity contribution of $124,000 to form Trust (1. Trust Il invested the total
proceeds from the equity contribution and the securities sale in Fixed/Floating Rate Junior Subordinated
Debentures (the Debentures li) issued by Bancorp. The net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures Il
were Lsed to contribute capital to the Bank and for general corporate purposes. The terms of the TruPS i
are such that they qualify as Tier | capital under the Federal Reserve Board's regulatory capital guidelines
epplicable to bank holding companies on & consolidated basis.

With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid interest on the
Debentures is subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior and subordinated
indebtedness of Bancorp. interest on the Debentures is payable quarterly commencing December 15,
2007 at a rate equal to 6.338% through December 15, 2012 and then at a rate equal to the three-month
LIBOR rate plus 1.45% (3.04% at December 31, 2017) through maturity. The interest is deferrable on a
cumulative basis for up to 20 consecutive quarters. No principal payments are due until maturity on
December 15, 2037.

Bancorp may redeem the Debentures fl, in whole or in part, on or after December 15, 2012 at an amount
equal to the principal amount of the debt securities being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on
such securities to the redemption date. Trust I’s obligations under the TruPS Il are fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by Bancorp. Any redemption is subject to Bancorp obtaining the prior
approval of the Federal Reserve. The debentures balance related to Trust Il is $4,124,000 at

December 31, 2017 and 2016. Under ASC Topic 810, Trust Il does not meet the criteria for consolidation.

Note 12. Federal Income Taxes

Federal income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following
{in thousands}:

2017 2016
Current income tax expense $ 2042 3 1,565
Deferred income tax benefit (197) (18)
Deferred income tax expense related to
remeasurement of defermed taxes 897 -

$ 2742 § 1,547
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Note 12.  Federal Income Taxes (Contihued)

Income taxes differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 34% to
eamings before income taxes as a result of the following (in thousands):

2017 2016
Computed "expected” income tax expense $ 2102 % 1,661
Tax-exempt municipal income, net of disallowed interest expense (54) (59)
Eamings on life insurance policies {71) 4]
Tax rate change (computed at 21%) 897 -
Other _ {132) 16

$ 2,742  § 1,547

As a result of the enactment of the Tax Cuf and Jobs Act in December 2017, the Company revalued it
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences and unrealized gains and losses on
available for sale securities using the new corporate tax rate of 21% that takes effect on January 1, 2018,
The effect of this revaluation was a one-time charge to income tax expense of $897,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

On February 14, 2018, ASU No. 2018-02 was issued, allowing for a one-time reclassification of cerain
deferred tax items that had been stranded in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss as a
result of tax adjustments made in connection with the enactment of the TCJA. The ASU allowed early
adoption of its provisions for those companies which had not yet issued thelr 2017 financial statements.
Accordingly, the Company early adopted ifs provisions and recorded a reclassification of $36,384 which
decreased retained eamings and decreased accumulated other comprehensive Joss as of December 31,
2017. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of tamporary differences between the recorded
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes and are included with other assets on the balance sheet. Significant components of the
Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows {in

thousands):

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for [oan losses $ 974 $ 1,535
Stock options 85 188
Deferred compensation 698 992
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 58 75
Other 80 66
Total deferred tax assets 1,876 2,856
Deferred tax liabilities:
Premises and equipment 306 687
FHLB stock dividends 10 8
Other 20 28
Total deferred tax liabilities 426 "~ 724
Net deferred tax asset $ 1450 § 2,132
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Note 13. Financlal instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instrurents include commitments
to extend cradit and standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet. At December 31,
2017 and 20186, the approximate amounts of these financial instruments were as follows (in thousands):

2017 2016
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:
Commiiments to extend credit $ 117,058 $ 121,222
Standby letters of credit 2,955 1,257

$ 120013 § 122479

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments fo extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the
confractual amount of these instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it doaes for on balance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The
amount of coilateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based on
management's credit 6valuation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts
receivable, inventary, property, plant and equipment and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are written conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. The Company’s policies generally require that letter of credit
arrangements contain security and debt covenants simiiar to those contained in loan arrangements. In the
event the custoner does not perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the third party,
the Company wouid be required to fund the commitment. The maximurn potential amount of future
payments the Company could be required to make is represented by the contractual amount shown in the
table above. If the commitment is funded, the Company would be entitled to seek recovery from the
customer. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, no amounts have been recorded as liabilities for the
Company's potential obligations under these guarantees.
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Note 14. Fair Value Measurements

Accounting guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participante. A fair value measurement
assumes thet the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the
asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The price in the principal (or most advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the
asset or liability shall not be adjusted for transaction costs. An orderly transaction is a transaction that
assumes exposure to the market for a period prior to the measurement date to allow for marketing
activities that are usual and customary for transactions involving such assets and liabilities; it is not a
forced transaction. Market participants are buyers and sellers in the principal market that are

(i) independent, (ii} knowledgeable, (i)} able to transact and (jv) willing to transact.

The guidance requires the use of valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach, the
incoms approach and/or the cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable agsets and liabilities. The
income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts, such as cash flows or eamings, fo
a single present amount on a discounted basis. The cost approach is baged on the amount that currently
would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost). Valuation technigues
should be consistently applied. Inputs to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Inputs may be observable, meaning those that
reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on
market data obtained from independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect the
reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. In that regard,
the guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs thet gives the highest priority to quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to uncbservable inputs,
The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Leve! 2 Inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. These might include quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or fiability (such as interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, credit rigks, elc.)
or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by market data by correlation or-
other means.

Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an
entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in

pricing the assets or liabilties.

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instrumente measured at fair value, as well as the
general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below. During
2017 there have been ne changes in valuation methodologies compared to 2016 and no transfers

between levels.
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Note 14.  Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The following table represents assets and liabilttiss reported on the consolidated balance sheets at their
fair value on a recurring basis as of Dacember 31, 2017 and 2016 by level within the fair value
maasurement hierarchy:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using
{Doflars in Thousands)
Assets/ Cuotad Frices
Liabiities In Active Markets Significant Other Significant
Messured  for entical AssetsQbservable inputsUnobservable inputs

at Fuir Value  (Level1) (Level2) (Level 3)
2017:
Measured on a recurring basis:
Assets:
Investment securities availabls for sale:
U.S. treasury § 7451 § 7451 % N $ n
U.S. government agency pbiigations 20,841 - 20,841 n
Rasidential morigage-backed sacurities 6,242 - 6,242 -
Collateralized morigage obligations 1446 - 1,446 -
2016:
Msasured on a recurring besis:
Assels:
hvestment securlties availabls for sale:
U.S. treasury 5 484 5 484 % . 5 -
LS. government agency obiigations 24,112 S 24,112 -
Residential morigage-backed securities 5,072 = 5,072 -
Collateralized morigage oblgations 1,967 - 1,967 .

Level 1 securifies include actively-traded government bonds, such as certain United States Treasury and
other United States government securities. All other securities available for sale are classified within
Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. The Company obtains fair value measurements for investment
securities from an independent pricing service. The fair vaiue measurements consider observable data
that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, jive trading
leveis, trade exacution data, market consensus prepayment spreads, credit Information and the bond's
terms and conditions, among other things.

The Company has no nonfinancial assets or nonfinancial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis.
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Note 14.  Falr Value Measurements (Continued)

The following table presents the assets carried on the consolidated balance sheet, by caption and by
level in the fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2017 and 2016, for which a nonrecurring change in fair

value has been recorded:

Fair Value M sasurements at Reporiing Dets Using

(DoRars In Thousands)
Asgets/ Quotad Prices Significant
Liabilitles in Active M arkels Significant Other Unobservakle
Maasured for ldentical Assels  Observable inputs inpuis
at Fair Value {Level 9 (Level 2) {Lavel 8)
01
Mezsured on a nanrecurring basis:
Assels:
Impaired loans 5 1965 % - 3 = 4 1485
Other raal estate 202 . o 202
0E6:
M easured on & nonrecurring basis:
Assois:
Impaired ioans 3 678 § - 3 A 678
238 = 238

Other raal estete

Impaired loans.are classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. The fair value of impaired loans is
derived in accordance with ASC Topic 310, Receivables. The fair value of impaired loans is based on the
fair value of the collateral discounted based on internal ¢riteria. Impaired loans are primarily comprised of
collateral-dependent commercial and real sstate loans.

Other real estate owned is measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis (upon initial recognition or
subsequent impairment),
Other real estate owned is classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. When transferred from the

loan portfolio, other real estale is adjusted to and subsequently carried at fair value less sstimated selling
costs. The fair value is determined using an external appraisal process, discounted based on intemal

criteria.
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Note 14.  Fair Value Measurements {Continued)

The estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments is as follows at December 21, 2017 and
2016 (in thousands):

2017 2016
Canmying  Estimated Carrying  Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 18737 §$ 18737 §$ 16,318 § 16,318
Time deposits in other financial

institutions 100 100 4,827 4,827
Secuiities awailable for sale 35,980 35,880 31,645 31,645
Securities held to maturity 6,622 6,585 8,719 8,578
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,943 1,943 G25 625
Accrued interest receivable 2,030 2,030 2,007 2,087
Loans, net 428,882 427,833 419,943 418,038
Loans held for sale 447 447 468 468

Financial liablilities:

Depaosits liabilities 433,822 433,874 442 330 442,410
FHLB advances 24,358 24,248 9,221 $,313
Notes Payable 5,510 5,510 8,400 8,400
ESOP debt commitment 234 234 as7 357
Junior subordinated debentures 12,372 12,372 12,372 12,372
Accrued interest payable 477 477 203 203

Note 15. Benefit Plans

401(k) plan: The Company has a defined contribution profit sharing plan for all employees that meet
certain age and service requirements. Under the plan, employees may elect to defer up to 90% of their
salary subject to the Internal Revenue Service limits. The Company may, at its discretion, contribute to
the plan an amount determined annually by the Board of Directors. The Company’s expense for the plan
was $257,731 and $341,100 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Salary continuation plan: The Company has entered into salary continuation agreements with certain
key employees to be paid over a period of ten to fifteen years after the employees’ retirement, The
Company has purchased single-premium iife insurance policies on each of the individuals covered to fund
the future obligation. The cash surrender value of these policies totaled approximately $9,950,000 and
$9,743,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Salary continuation payable totaled
approximately $3,251,000 and $2,848,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively and is included
in other liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet, Three participants reached refirement age and
received payments under the pfan in 2017, The expenses incurred of $529,000 and $238,000 are
included in salaries and smployee benefits in the accompanying income statement for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

32



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidlaries
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 16. Benefit Pians (Continued)

Employee stock ownership plan (ESOP): Effective in 1998, the Company established the ESOP. Under
this Plan, thers is an Employee Stock Ownership trust which holds the investments of the Plan. The
Company was designated as the Plan Sponser and the Bank was designated as an Employer of the Plan.
The Plan covers substantially all employees who qualify as to age and length of service. Contributions to
the Plan are generally invested by the Plan in the common stock of the Company. Contributions to the
Pian by the Bank are at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company and the Bank; however,
contributions must be sufficient to pay any current obligations of the Plan.

During 2008, the Plan borrowed $1,000,000 from an unaffiliated bank to purchase 19,841 sharas of
Company stock, The 2009 note is payable in monthly instaliments consisting of principal payments of
$8,333 plus accrued interest, bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (4.50% at
December 31, 2017), and matures in September 2019.

During 2010, the Plan borrowed $235,000 from an unaffiliated bank to acquire 5,000 shares of Company
stock. The 2010 note is payable in monthly installments consisting of principal payments of $1,958 plus
accruad interest, bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate {4,50% at Decembar 31, 2017), and
matures in June 2020,

At December 31, 2017 and 20186, the Plan had approximately $234,000 and $357,000, respectively,
outstanding related to the notes, which are guaranteed by the Company and collateralized by the
Company’s common stock.

In accordance with ASC Topic 718-40, Employee Stock Ownership Plans, the Company has recorded the
loans as obligations of the Company, with the amounts outstanding in the balance sheets classified as
ESOP debt commitment, and the issued shares held by the lender as collateral classified in a contra-
equity account, unearned ESOP shares. During 2017 and 2016, 2,484 and 2,484, respectively, were
released as principal payments were made. The remaining 4,721 shares are considered suspense shares
held by the Plan. The fair value of the unearned ESOP shares at December 31, 2017 was $524,020 or
$111.00 per share, which was based on a third party valuation as of December 31, 2018. This was the
most current valuation performed. The Company’s contributions to the ESOP consist of debt service
payments to the trust and any additional voluntary payments made. During 2017 and 2016, the Company
made contributions of approximately $138,000 and $138,000, respectively, to the ESOP for debt service
payments. The coniributions for each year will be divided among the eligible participants employed on
December 31 in the proportion that each such participant's compensation, as defined in the Plan, for that
year which bears (o the compensation for all such participants in the Plan.

Following are principal maturities for the notes payable as of December 31, 2017 {in thousands):

2018 $ 124
2019 89
2020 11

] 234
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Note 16. Stock Compensation

Stock options: Stock options are periodically granted by the Company to key employees with an
axercise price equai to the stock's estimated fair market value at the date of grant. The stock options
have varying terms and vest and become fully exercisable during various years from the date of grant.

The following is a summary of the status of the Plan during 2017 and 2016:

-y g 2016
Welghted Aggregate Weighled
Number Average Infrinsic Nurmber Average
of Shares Exarcise Price Value of Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding, beginning of year 64838 % 50.03 6503 § 50.37
Granted during the year - - - .
Exercised during the year (3,500} 3253 . -
Forfeited during the year {200) 53.00 (200) 53.00
Sxpired during the year {1,800 51.33 - 4
Cutstanding, end of year 59338 3§ 5137 § 3,053,733 6483 § 50.03
Exercisabie, at end of year 5833 § 51.30 64438 % 50.34

The options outstanding at December 31, 2017 have exercise prices ranging from $35 to $55. At
December 31, 2017, the weighted average remaining coniractual life of 48,436 options outstanding and
exercisable is .8 years. The remaining 12,800 options outstanding and exercisable can be exercisad up
to 91 days after employment is terminated,

The intrinsic value of options exercised during 2017 was approximately $148,660. No options were
exercised during 2015.

Total compensation expense for options recognized during 2017 and 2016 was $370 and $4,000,
respectively. At December 31, 2017, there will be no future compensation expense related to options
granied.
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Note 16.  Stock Compensation (Continued)

Restricted stock: The Company has granted restricted stock awards to certain employees of the
Company. The stock awards have varying terms and vest over four or five years from the date of grant,
The shares become free of restrictions on the vesting date if the grantee remains a full ime employee of
the Company. The shares become free of restrictions prior to the vesting date upan early involuntary
termination, other than termination for cause, death, or disability, or at the discretion of the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The following table summarizes the activity in nonvested shares for the
year ended December 31, 2017:

Weighted
Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Falr Value
Nonvested resiricied stock, December 31, 2016 7380 $ 74.58
Granted during the year 1,300 95.27
Vested during the year {1,945) 70.03
Forfeited during the year {1,040) 80.00
Nonvested restricted stock, December 31, 2017 5505 % 59.73

Total compensation expense related to restricted stock awards was $129,000 and §1 55,000 during 2017
and 2016, respectively. At December 31, 2017, future compensation expense related to restricted stock
awards is approximately $387,000 and will be recognized over a remaining period of five years.

Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in certain legal actions arising from normal business activities. Management
believes that the outcome of such proceedings will not materially affect the financial position, rasults of
operations or cash flows of the Company.

Note 18. Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has and expects to continue to have transactions including
borrowings with its employees, directors and their affiliates. In the opinion of management, such
transactions are on the same terms, including interest rates and coliateral requirements. as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons. The aggregate amount of
such loans was approximately $8,657,000 and $8,785,000 at December 31, 2017 and 201 6, respectively.
Additionally, at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank had unfunded commitments for such loans of
approximately $4,008,000 and $4,473,000, respectively. The approximate amount of payments, including
interest, received on these loans was $8,559,000 and the approximate amount of new loans funded was

$7.080,000 in 2017.
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Progresslve Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 18.  Significant Group Concentrations

Most of the Company’s business activity is with customers located within Louisiana. Such customers are
normally also depositors of the Company. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in
Note 5. Generally, the Company's loans are collateralized and are expected o be repaid from cash flow
or proceeds from the sales of selected assets of the borrowers.

The distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding.
Commercial and standby lelters of credit are granted primarily to commercial borrowers.

Note 20. Regulatory Matiers

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by banking agencies. Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discrefionary
actions Dy regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action,
the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assels, liabilities, and
certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts
and classification are also subject fo qualitative judgments by the regulators about compohents, risk
weightings, and other factors. _

in July 2013, the FDIC and other regulatory bodies issued final rules consisting of minimum requirements
that increase both the quantity and quality of capital held by banking organizations. The final rules are a
result of the implementation of the BASEL ill capital reforms and various Dodd-Frank Act related capital
provisions and impact all U.S. banking organizations with more than $500 million in assets. Consistent
with the Basel international framework, the new rule includes a new minimum ratie of Common Equity
Tier 1 (CET1} to risk-weighted assets of 4.5 percent and a Common Equity Tier 1 capital conservation
buffer of 2.5 percent of risk-weighted assets. The rule also raised the minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted assets from 4 percent to 6 percent and includes a minimum Leverage ratio of 4 percent for
all banking organizations. Regarding the quality of capital, the new rule emphasizes Common Equity

Tier 1 capital and implements strict efigibility criteria for regulatory capital instruments. The new rule also
improves the methodelogy for calculating risk-weighted assets to enhance risk sensitivity. The new ruls is
subject to a four year phase in period for mandatory compliance and the Company is required to begin to
phase in the new rules beginning on January 1, 2015. Management believes that after the phase in of the
new capital standards, the Company and the Bank will remain classified as "well-capitalized.,"

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Total, CET1 and Tier | capital (as defined in
the regulations) to risk weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier | capital (as defined) to average assets
(as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2017, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2017, the Bank's capital ratios exceeded those levels necessary to be categorized as
“well capitalized™ under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as "well
capitalized,” the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, CET1, Tier | risk-based and Tier i
leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no conditions or events since Decarber 31,
2017 that management believes have changed the Bank’s category.
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 20. Regulatory Matters (Continued)

A comparison of the Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios to required capital amounts and ratios is
presented in the following table (in thousands):

To Ba Wel
Capitazed Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount  Ratio  Amounl  Raio Amount Ratio
2017:
Total capital fo risk welghted asssts $ 64,887 13.53% § 44,587 9.30% $4785¢  10.00%
Tier | capital to riek w eighted asseis 59,982 1251% 35,006 7.30% 38,363 B.00%
CET1 capial fo risk weighted assels 59982 12.51% 27813 5.80% 31,170 6.50%
Tiér | capital to average assels 50,882 11.12% 21,579 4.00% 26974 5.00%
2016:
Total capital to risk w eighted assets $63128 13.41% $ 37.689 880% $47,086 10.00%
Tier | capltal to risk w eighisd assets 58,143 12.35% 28,252 6.80% 37,669 8.00%
CET1 capftal to risk w eighted assets 58,143  12.35% 21,180 5.10% 30,606 £.50%
Tiar | capital to average assets 58,143 11.01% 21,124 4.00% 26,405 5.00%
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Supplementary Information

The Board of Directors
Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the consolidated financia! statements of Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 and have issued our report thereon which
contains an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. See page 1. Our audits wers conducted for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The consolidating
information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of the individual companies and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolldated
financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procadures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards genernally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole. :

RSKH us LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 28, 2018

THE FOWER UF BEIG QHDHERSTOLD
SOOI TAX COESULTING
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule 1 - Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31, 2017
{In Thousands)
Progressiva
Bank and Frogressive Consoldated
Subsidiary  Bancorp, h¢. Eeminations Total
Assetls
Cash and due from banks $ 7883 $ 2414 § (2414) a § 7883
interest-bearing deposits 10,854 - i 10,854
Time deposfis in other financial insttutions 100 - 1060
Securlties available for sale 35,080 . - 35,880
Securitiee heki 1o maturity 8,622 - - 6,622
Investment in subsdiaries - 59,761 (59761) b -
Loans held for sale 447 - - 447
Loans, net 429,413 - {(531) c 428,882
Premises and equipment, net 14,975 a53 - 15,928
Bank ow ned e insurance 9,950 - = 9,080
Other real estate ow ned 202 - . 202
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,043 - - 1,043
Other assels 5,921 869 - 6,790
Total assets § 524290 § 63997 $ (62706) $ 525,581
Liabilities and Stockholders® Equity
Depostts: .
Neninlerest-bearing $ 183124 § - § (2419 a § 180,710
biarest-bearing 253,112 - - 253,112
Total deposits 436,236 - (2418 433,622
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 24,358 - - 24,358
Nofes payable - 6,041 {531 ¢ 5,510
ESOP debt commitment - 234 - 234
Junior subordinated debentures - 12,372 - 12,372
Other Rkabilities 3,835 122 - 4,057
Total llabilitles 464,520 18,766 (2,945) 280,353
Stockhoklers' equily:
Preferred stock - - . -
Commen stock 780 2,603 (780) b 2.603
Paid- capital 25407 13,503 (25407 b 13,503
Retzined earnings 33,785 33,858 (33,788) b 33,959
Accumulated ather comprehensive income (221) (221) 21 b (221)
Uneamed ESOP shares - (234) - (234)
Treasury stock - {4,582} - {4,382)
Total stockholders® equity 56,761 45,228 (59,767) 45,228
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity § 524200 § 83997 $ (62,706) $ 525581

Ses independent auditor's report on the supplementary infermation.
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Prograssive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule 2 - Consollidating Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31, 2017
(In Thousandes)

Progressive
Bank and Progressive Consolidated
Subsidiary  Bancorp, inc.  Bliminations Total
“Interes{ income:
Loans, Including fees $ 32w § o § (29) e § 21,200
Securfies:
Taxable 483 - - 463
Nontexshle 162 - - 162
Interesi-bearing deposis 180 - 180
Other - 15 - 16
22,133 15 7)) 22,179
Inlerest expense:
Deposlis g74 - - 974
FHLB advances, FNBB Note Payable and other 528 274 (29 e 771
Junilor gubordinated debentures - 509 - 509
1,600 783 (25) ~ 2,254
Net interest income 20,633 {768} - 19,885
Frovigion for loan losses 144 - - 144
Not Interast income after provision for loan losses 20,480 (768) - 19,721
Noninterest ncome:
Bquily in eamings of subsidiary - 4,523 (8823 d -
Service charges &nd fees 2877 - . 2,877
Trust and brokerage department 884 - - 884
Eamings on life insurance policies 208 = 208
Insurance commissions 13 - - 13
Gain on sale of other real estate ow ned 16 T - 16
Other 88 o8 (99) e o6
3,804 5,022 (5.022) 3,804
Noninterest expenses:
Salariee and employee benefits 10,314 - - 10,314
Occupancy 1,770 &84 {55} e 1,755
Furniture and equipment 640 - - 640
Techl'IOhgy 1 rzm ' = 1,203
Professional fees 006 172 - 1,168
Adverlisivg and busihess development 717 - = 717
ATMdebit card expense 443 - - 443
Deposits insurance assessment 142 . - 142
Loss on sale of assets 5 - - 5
Cther 1,038 7 - 1,045
“17.271 263 (09) 17,435
Income before Income taxos 7,112 3,801 (4,923) 6,180
Income tax expense 2,189 563 - 2,742
Net Income S5 4923 § 3438 § (4,923 $ 3438

See indepandent auditor's report on the supplementary Information.
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Description of Eliminating Entries
Year Ended December 31, 2017

b.

To eliminate intercompany cash and deposits.

To eliminate investment accounts against the stockholders’ equity of the consolidated
subsidiaries.

To eliminate intercompany payables and receivables.
To eliminate equity in earnings of subsidiaries.

To eliminate intercompany income and expense.
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RSM

RSMUSLLP
Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Progressive Bancormp, Inc. and its
Subsidiaries (the Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and
20186, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders'
equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial stataments

(collectively, the financial statements).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the Unlted States of America; this includes the
deslign, Implementation and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibllity Is to express an opinion on these financlal statements based on our audits. We conducted

our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of materiai misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enfity’s intemal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatensess of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, s
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolldated financial statements.

We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our
audit apinion.

Oplnion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respacts, the financial

position of Progressive Bancorp, inc. and Subsldiaries as of December 31, 2017 and 201 6, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended In accordance with accounting principles
generally accepled in the United States of America.

PSK 1S LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 28, 2018

THz 2OV.ER OF BEiv 6 SRlDERFYNON
JUTTTEEAN CURSULUMG

RIS T
s,



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2017 and 2016
{Dollars in Thousands, Share Data)

2017 2016
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 7,883 % 10,631
interest-bearing deposits 10,854 5,687
Total cash and cash equivalents 18,737 16,318
Time deposits in other financial institutions 100 4,827
Securities available for sale 35,980 31,645
Securities held to maturity 6,622 8,719
Loans held for sale 447 468
Loans, net 428,882 419,943
Premiges and equipment, net 15,928 16,391
Bank owned life insurance 9,950 9,743
Other real estate owned - 202 238
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,943 625
Other assels 6,790 8,187
Total assets 525581 $ 517,104
Liabilities and Steckholders’ Equity
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing $ 180,710 § 183,704
interest-bearing 253,112 248,625
Total deposits 433,822 442 329
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 24,358 9,221
Notes payable ' 5,510 8,400
ESOP debt commitment 234 357
Junior subordinated debentures 12,372 12,372
Other liabilities 4,057 4,470
Totzl liabilittes 480,353 475,149
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock; $5 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized: 520,872 and
521,772 shares issued at December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively 2,603 2,608
Paid-in capital 13,503 13,424
Retained eamings 33,959 30,491
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (221) (148)
Unearned ESOP shares {367}
Treasury stock, at cost, 72,748 and 70,981 shares at December 31, 2017 and ’
2016, respectivaly (4,382) (4,066)
Total stockholders’ equity 45,228 41,855
Total Habilitles and stockholders’ equity $ 526581 $ 517,104

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiares

Consolidated Stateaments of Income
Yoars Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
{In Thousands)

2017 2016
Interest ir!comef
Loans, including fees $ 21,299 $ 20,278
Securities:
Taxable 463 430
Nontaxable 162 174
interest-bearing deposits 180 148
Other __ 15 14
22,119 21,044
interest expense:
Deposits 974 644
Federal Home Loan Bank advances, FNBB Note Payable and other 771 540
Junior subordinated debentures 509 448
2,254 1,630
Net interast income 19,865 19,414
Provigion for loan losses 144 20
Net Interest income after provision for loan losses 19,721 19,384
Noninterest income: _
Senice charges and fees 2,677 2,626
Trust and brokerage department 884 a1t
Eamings on life insurance policies 208 210
insurance commissions 13 36
Gain (Loss) on sale of other real estate owned 18 4)
Other 96 76
3,894 3,855
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 10,314 10,631
Occupancy 1,755 1,873
Fumiture and equipment 640 654
Technology 1,206 1,286
Professional fees 1,168 1,285
Advertising and business development 7 826
ATM/debit card expense 443 528
Deposits insurance assessment 142 189
Loss on sale of assets 5 2
Other 1,045 1,088
] i S
17,435 16382
income before income taxes 6,180 4,887
Income tax expense 2,742 1,547
Net income S 3438 § 3,340

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended Decoember 31, 2017 and 2016

(In Thousands)
2017 2016
Net income $ 3438 $ 3,340
Other comprehensive loss, before tax:
Change in net unrealized loss on securities available for sale {59) 221)
Other comprehensive loss, before tax (59) {221)
Income tax benefit 20 75
Othsr comprehensive loss, net of tax (39) {148)
Comprehensive income $ 3399 § 3,194

See notes to conselidated financial statements,
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

{In Thousands)
2017 2016
Cash flows from operating aclivities:
Netincome $ 3438 % 3,340
Adjustments to reconcfle net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 849 876
Dafarred incoma iax (benefif) expense 682 {18)
Stock compensatlon expense 129 150
Amariization of securities, net n T8
Provislon for loan loss 144 20
Net decrease (increasa) in loans hald for sale 21 (31}
Loas on disposal of premises and equipment 6 2
Eamings on Ie insurance policles {208) 211)
Wirite-dewn of other real estate owned 35 134
(Galn) loss on sale of other real estate owned (16) 4
Net change in other assets 702 (887)
Net change In other llablilties {413) (618)
Nat cash provided by operating activitios 5,438 2,951
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of securifies available for sale (14,988) (7.075)
Purchases of securifies held to maturity - (3,429)
Proceeds from maturities, calls and paydowns of securities avallable for sale 10,548 2,758
Proceeds from maturities, calls and paydowns of securities held to maturity 2,074 2,168
Purchases of premises and equipment (388) (663)
Procesds from the sale of premises and equipment 7 -
Net (purchases} retdemptions of Federal Home Loan Bank stock {1.293) 266
Net (increase) decrease in loans {9,083} 13,328
Net maturities {purchases) of time deposits with other finansial institutions 4,727 4,727
Proceeds from sale of other real estate cwned 18 138
Net cash (usod In) provided by Investing activities - {8,388) 2,765
Cash fiowe from financing activitles:
Net decrease in deposits {8,506) {1.878)
Net increase (decrease) in FHLB advances 15,137 {3,772)
Net {decrease) increase in note payable {890) 6,400
Purchase of freaswry stock {467) (449)
Proceeds from exerclse of commen stock options 115
Redemption of preferred stock - (12,000}
Preferred stock dividend payments - (&)
Net cash provided by (used In) financing activities 5,369 {11,807)
Net Increaso (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 2419 {6,001)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 16,318 N 22,409
End of year 737 16,318

See noles i consolidated financial statlements.



Progressive Bancorp, inc. and Subsidlaries
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 1. = Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of Progressive Bancorp, Inc. (Bancorp) and Subsidiaries
(collectively refermed to as Company) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and to general practices within the banking Industry.

Principles of consolldation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Bancorp and fis wholly-cwned subsidiary, Progressive Bank (Bank) and the Bank's wholly owned
subsidiary, Progressive Financial Advisors, LLC (PFA). Al significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in congolidation.

Nature of operations: The Company is engaged in traditional communily banking activities, which
include commercial and retail lending, deposit gathering, trust services and investment and fiquidity
management activities. The Company's primary deposit products are demand deposits, money market
accounts and certificates of deposit, and its primary lending products are commercial business and real
estate, real estate morigage and consumer loans with customers located primarily in and around
Winnsboro, Monroe, West Menroe, Bossier City and Shreveport, Louisiana, and the surrounding areas,

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management fo make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounte of assets and liabilities and disciosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses for the period. Accordingly, actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

A material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relates to the
determination of the allowance for loan losses. A significant partion of the Company’s loans are
collateralized by real estate and related assets located in local markets. Accordingly, the ultimate
collectability of the Company’s loan portfolic is susceptible to changes in local market conditions.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and amounts due from banks. The Company normally considers al! highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of less than ninety days to be cash equivalents. Cash flows from loans

and deposits are reported net.

The Company is required to maintain reserve balances in cash or an deposit with the Federal Reserve
Bank to meet regulatory reserve and clearing requirements. The Company’s required reserve was $0 at
both December 31, 2017 and 2016. The Company’s average balance held at the Federal Reserve Bank
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was approximately $14,300,00¢ and $22,558,000,

respactively.

Time deposits In other financlal institutions: Time deposits in other financial Institutions mature within
three years and are carried at cost.

Investment securitles: Securities classified as avallable for sale are those that the Company intends to
hold for an indefinite period of time, but not necessarily to maturity. Any decision to sell a security
classified as available for sale would be based on various factors, including significant movements in
interast rates, changes in the maturity mix of the Company's assets and liabilities, liquidity needs,
regulatory capital considerations, and other similar factors,

Securities available for sale are reported at fair value with unrealized gains or losses reported as a
separate component of other comprehensive income. The amortization of premiums and accretion of
discounts, computed by the interest method over their contractual lives, are recognized in interest

income.



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidlaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Debt securities for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported
at cost, adjusted for premiums and discounts that are recognized in interest income using the interest

method over the period to maturity.

Realized gains or losses, determined on the basis of the cost of specific securities sold, are included in
earnings.

In estimating other than temporary impairment losses, management considers (1) the length of time and
the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, {2) the financial condition and near-term
prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent of the Company 1o retain its investment and whether it is more
likely than nof the Company will be required to sell its investment before its anticipated recovety in fair
value. When the Company does not intend to sell the security, and it is more likely than not that it will not
have to sell the security before recavery of its cost basis, it will recognize credit component of an other
than temporary impairment of a debt security in eamings and the remaining portion in other
comprehensive income.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock: As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas {FHLB), the
Company is required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLB. FHLB stock does not have a
readily determinable fair value as ownership is restricted and it lacks a ready market. As a result, this
stock is carried at cost and evaluated periodically by managemant for impairment. No impairment has
been identified during 2017 or 2016.

Loans heid for sale: Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are camied at the
lower of aggregate cost or fair value, as determined by aggregate outstanding commitments from
investors or current investor yield requirements. Gains or losses on sales of morfgage loans are
recognized based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related

mortgage loans. -

Loans: Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foresesable future or until
maturity or pay-off are reporied at their outstanding principal balance adjusted for an allowance for loan
losses. Interest is accrued daily on the outstanding balances.

Fees and costs associated with originating loans are recognized in income generally in the period in
which the fees were received and the costs were incurred. Under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, such fees and costs should be deferred and recognized over
the life of the loan as an adjustment of yield. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
management believes that not deferring such fees and costs, and amortizing them over the life of the
related loans does not materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

The accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when, in management’s opinion, the borrower
may be unable to mest payments as they become due, Past due status is based on the contractual terms
of the Joan, When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed, Interest income
is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received. Loans are retumed to accrual
status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments

are reasonably assured.



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Polities (Continued)

Transfers of financlal assets: Transfers of financizl asssts are accounted for as sales only when control
over the assets has been sumrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered
when: (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, {2) the transferee cobtains the right to pledge
or exchange the assets it recaived, and no condition both constrains the transferee from taking advantage
of its right to pledge or exchange the assets it received, or provides more than a modest benefit to the
transferor, and (3) the Company does not maintain effactive control over the transferred assets through
an agreement fo repurchase them before their maturity or the ability to unileterally cause the holder to
retum specific assets. in addition, for transfers of a portion of financial assets (for example, participations
of lpan receivables), the transfer must meet the definition of a ‘participating interast' in order to account for
the transfer as a sale. Following are the characteristics of a ‘participating interest":

e Pro-rata ownership in an entire financial asset.

» From the date of the transfer, &ft cash flows received from the entire financial asset are divided
proportionately among the participating interest holders in an amount equal to their share of

ownership.

 The rights of each participating interest holder have the same priority, and no participating interest
holder's interest is subordinated to the interest of another participating interest holder. That is, no
participating interest holder is entitied to receive cash before any other participating interest holder
under its contractuat rights as a participating interest holder.

No party has the right to pledge or exchange the entire financial asset unless al| participating interest
hoiders agree to pledge or exchange the entire financial asset.

Allowance for loan losses: The allowance for [oan losses is established through a provision for loan
losses charged to expense. Loans are charged against the aflowance for loan losses when management
believes that collectability of the principal is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the
allowance.

The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses on
existing loans, based on an evaluation of the collectability of loans and prior loss experience. This
evaluation also takes into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, overall portfofio quality, review of specific problem loans, and current sconomic conditions that
may affect the borrower’s ability to pay. While management uses the best information avallable to make
its evaluation, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if there are significant changes in
economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process,
periodically review the Company’s allowancs for loan losses, and may require the Company o make
adjustments to the allowance based on their judgment about information available to them at the time of

their examinations.

A loan is considered impaired when it is probabie, based upon current information and events, the
Company will not be able to collect all contractual principal and interest payments due in accordance with
the tarms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans are accounted for at the net present value of expected
future cash flows, discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the observable market price of the loan
or at the fair value of the collateral if the Joan is collateral dependent. Modifications that result in troubled

debt restructurings are alse considered impaired.
Premises and equipment: Land is carried at cost. Buildings and improvements, furniture, fixtures, and

equipment and vehicles are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization which are
computed principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assaets.



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Other real estate owned: Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are to
be sold and are initially recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs at the date of foreclosure,
establishing a new cost basis. After foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management
and the real estate is subject to reevaluation based upen new estimates of falr value. Revenue and
expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in other noninterest

expense,

Comprehensive income: Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenus, expenses,
gains and losses be included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as
unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the
equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, are components of
comprehensive income. Gains and losses on available for sale securities are reclessified to net income
as the gains or [osses are realized upon sale of the securities, Other-than-temporary impairment charges

are reclassified to net income at the time of the charge.

Share-based payment: Share-based payments to employees, including grants of empicyee stock
options and restricted stock, are valued at fair value on the grant date and expensed over the applicable

vesting period,

Income taxes: The Company files a consolidated income tax return with its subsidiaries. Income tax
expense or benefit is allocated on a separate return basis.

Deferred taxes are provided using the liability method. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible
temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit camyforwards if it is more likely than not, based
on the technical merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences
between the reported amounts of assets-and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are
reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. .

The Company files tax returns in all appropriate jurisdictions, which include a federal tax return and a
Louisiana state tax retumn. When and if applicable, potential interest and penalty costs are accrued as
incurred, with expenses recognized in interest expense and noninterest expense, respectively, in the

siatements of income.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, management has determined there are no uncertain
tax positions.

Fair value measurements: Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, defines fair value, establishes a framework for Mmeasuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles, and requires certain disclosures about fair value
measurements. In general, fair values are based upon quoted markst prices, where available. If such
quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models that primarily
use, as inputs, observable market-based parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that
assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value. These adjustments may include amounts to reflect
counterparty credit quality and the Company’s creditworthiness, among other things, as well as
unobservable parameters, Any such valuation adjustments are appilied consistently over time.

Reclassification: Certain amounts previously reported have been reclassified to conform to current
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported stockholder's equity or net

income.
10



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial S$tatements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Subsequent events: In preparing these financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through March 28, 2017, the date the consolidated
financial statements wers available to be issued.

Note 2. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), ASU 2015-14, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 608): Deferral of the Effective Date: ASU 2014-09 amends existing
guidance related to revenue from contracts with customers. The amendments state that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amaunt that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. ASU 2014-09 affects entities that enter into contracts with customers to transfer goods or
services or enter into contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets, unless those contracts are within
the scape of other standards. The Company’s revenue consists of net interest income on financial assets
and financial liabilities, which is explicitly excluded from the scope of ASU 2014-09, and non-interest
income. As required by ASU 2014-09, we will adopt the new standard effective January 1, 2019,
However, we do not expect that the adoption of this guidance will result in any significant changes to our
methodology of recognizing revenue or have a material impact on our internal controls over financial

reporting.

ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabiliies. The amendments in this Update address certain aspects of
recoghition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial instruments. ASU 2018-01, among
other things, i) requires equity investments, with certain exceptions, to be measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in net income, (i) simplifies the impairment assessment of equity
investments without readily determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify
impairment, (iii} eliminates the requirement for public business entities to disclose the methads and
significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required to be disclosed for financial
instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet, (iv) requires public business entities 1o use
the exdt price notion when measuring the fair value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes, (v)
requires an entity to present separately in other comprahensive income the portion of the total change in
the fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the instrument specific cradit risk when the entity has
elected to measure the liability at fair value in accordance with the fair vaiue option for financial
instruments, (vi) requires separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by
measurement category and form of financial asset on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to
the financial statements and (viii) clarifies that an entity should evaluate the need for a valuation
allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available-for-sale. This update will be effective for the
Company on January 1, 2018 and is not expected to have a significant impact to the Company's financial

statements.

ASU 2016-02, Leases {Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02). ASU 2018-02 establishes a right-of-use (ROU) model
that requires a lessee to record 2 ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with
terms longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification
affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. The new standard is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years. A
modified retrospective transition approach is required for lessees for capital and operating leases existing
at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial
statements, with certain practical expedients available. The Company does not expect this update to have
a material impact on the audited financial statements and related disclosures.

11



Progressive Bancorp, inc. and Subsidiarles
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit L osses (Update to ASC 326). ASU 2018-13 emends existing
standards for accounting for credit iosses for financial assets. The update requires that the expected
credit losses on the financial instruments held as of the end of the period being reported by measured
based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The
update also expands the required disclosures related to significant estimates and judgements used in
estimating credit losses, as well as the credit quality and underwriting standards of an organization’s
financial assets. The update also amends the accounting for credit losses on available-for-sale debt
securnities and purchased financial assets with credit deterioration. The update will be effective for the
Company on January 1, 2021. The Company is evaiuating the potential impact of the update on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2017-04, intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Update fo ASC 350). ASU 2017-04 amends existing
guidance in evaluating goodwill for impairment. The update requires that an entity perform its annual or
interim goodwill test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, with any
impairment charges being recognized as the difference between the fair value and carrying value. The
update is infended to standardize the impairment test for all business entitie¢ and also reduce the
complexity and cost of evaluating goodwill for impairment. The update is effective for any annual or
interim goodwill impaimment tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The adoption of the
update is not expected to have a significant impact to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2017-08, Receivables — Nonrefundable Fees and Other Cosis {Subtopic 310-20), Premium
Amortization on Purchased Calleble Debt Securities. The amendments in this update shorten the
amortization pericd for certain callable debt securities held at a premium. Specifically, the amendments
require the premium to be amortized to the eariest call date. The amendments do not require an
accounting change for securities held at a discount and the discount continues to be amortized to
maturity. This update will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2020 and is not expected to have a
significant impact to the Company’s consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

ASU 2018-02, Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensiva income.
The amendments in this update allow reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to
retained eamings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act which was signed into
law on December 22, 2017. The amendments aiso require certain disclosures about stranded tax effects.
This update will be effective beginning January 1, 2019, with early adoption permitted, and the guidance
shouid be applied either in the pericd of adoption or retrospectively to each period impacted by the
change in the U. S. federal corporate income tax rate from when the Tax Cuts and Job Acts i
recognized. The Company has early adopted the new guidance as of December 31 , 2017. This resulted
in a cumulative effect adjustment to the consolidated balance sheet to reclass approximately $36
thousand of tax expense from accumulated other comprehensive loss to retained eamings.

Note 3. Statements of Cash Flows

The Company has chosen to report its cash flows by the indirect method. Supplemental information on
cash flows and noncash investing and financing transactions for the years ended December 31, 2017 and

2016 is as follows (in thousands):

2017 - 2018
Cash transactions:
Federal income taxes pald $ 2100 3 1,460
Interest expense paid $ 2058 $ 1,552

12



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidlaries
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 4. Securities

Securities have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets according to management’s intent,
The amortized cost of securities and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unreakzed Unreakzed Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Avafable for Sale
2017:
U.S. treasury ¥ TAT6 § N $ (24) 8 7.451
U.S. governmerit agency obligations 21,061 = (220) 20,841
Agency residential mortgage-backed securities? 6,246 28 (32) 6,242
Agency collateralized morigage obligations? 1,478 - {32) 1,446
§_36260 5 28 5 ___(308) _§ 35080
2016:
LLS. treasury 5 480 % 4 % - $ 454
LS. government agency obiigations 24,227 31 (148) 24,112
Agency residential morigage-hacked securilies! 5,152 34 {(114) 5,072
Agency colaterallzed morigage oblgatione? 1,068 - {32) 1,967
$ 31868 § 69§ {282) $ 31,645
Held o Maturlly
2017:
State and local municipals $ 6521 § - o4 $ 6,482
Agency residential morigage-backed securities! 101 _2 - 103
3662 § 57 % (84 5 6585
2018;
State and local municipals 5 8583 % w8 {20) § 8438

136 4 140

Agency residentlal morigage-backed securities’ -
[ 8718 $ 79 § (220) % 8,578

'Resldential mortgage-backed securities issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. governmant agencies or LS, governmeni-

sponsored antarprises.
*Collateraized mortgage obligations issued and/or guaranteed by LS. government agencies or LS. government-

sponsored enterprises.
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consnlidated Financial Statements

Note4.  Securities (Continued)

Unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by lengih of time that individual securities have beenina
continuous unrealized loss position, as of December 31, 2017 and 20186, are summarized as foliows (in

thousands):
Value Impaired

LCess Than 12 Nonths ‘Ii_ Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized  Falr Lnrealized Feir Unrealzed
Description of Securltles Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Avalable for Sale
2017
U, S. freasury $645 $ (249 3 - § - 56450 §& (29
U.S. government agency obBgations 11,833 {83} 8,907 (137} 20,840 {220)
Agency residential mortgage-bhacked
securilies’ 3711 {32) - - 371 {32)
Agency collateralzed mortgage
cbiigations? - - 1,426 (32) 1,426 {32)
522004 $ {139) $10333 § {169) §32427 § {308)
2016:
U.S. government agency obiigations $11830 § (148) $ - % - $11830 $ (148
Agency residential mortgage-backad
securities! 4217 {114) - = 4217 (114)
Agency collaterafized marigage
obligations? 1,917 (32) - - 1,917 (32)
$18064 § (202) § - $ - $18084 3 (202)
Held to Matu
2017:
State and local municipals 3 1680 § (10) § 2544 5 (84 § 4234 $ (54)
2016:
State and local municipals $ 5010 & (2200 § - $ - $ 5010 § (2203

Residential morigage-backed securities issued and/or guaranteed by LS. government agencies or LS. government-

sponsored enterprises,
Cplaterakzed mortgage obligations &5 ued andior guaranieed by U.S, government agencies or US, governmeni-

sponsored enlerprises.

For all of the above investment securities, the unrealized losses are generally due to changes in interest
rates and, as such, are considered to be temporary by the Company.

There were no sales of securities during the years ended December 31, 2017 or 2018,

Investment securities with a carrying value of $21,786,000 and $15,601.000 at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, were pledged to secure public depesits and for other purpozes required or permitted
by law.

14
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Notes to Co_nsolldated Financial Statements

Note 4. Securities (Continued)

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2017, by
contractual maturity, are shown below (in thougands). Expected maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without caff or
prepayment penalties. Residential mortgage-backed securities and collateraiized mortgage obligations
are shown separately since they are not due at a singie maturity date.

Awailable for Sale Held to Maturity
Amortized  Estimated  Amortized  Estimated
Cost Falr Value Cost Falr Value
Due in one year or less $§ 11999 §$ 11,985 § 50t $ 501
Due from one year through five years 16,637 16,326 2,881 2,879
Due from five to ten years - - 2,273 2,208
Due after ten years 20 21 866 804
28,556 28,312 6,521 6,483

Residential mortgage-backed securities

7,704 7,668 101 102

and collateralized mortgage obligations .
$ 36260 $ 35980 $ 6822 6,585

Note 5. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

To determine an appropriate allowance for loan losses, management separates loans into separate
categories based on similar risk characteristics. These categories and their risk characteristics are

described below:

* Commercial, financial and agricultural loans: This category consists of all business loans and
leases secured by assets other than real estate, It also inciudes loans for agriculture crop production
and recreational agriculture loans secured by the subject property and/or membership interest. A

substantial majority of these loans are secured by equipment, accounts receivable and inventory. The

primaty risk involved with this category is that the loans and leases are typically secured by
depreciable assets that may not provide an adequate source of repayment if the loan goes into
default. However, management believes the Bank's conservative underwrtting standards and credit

culture heip keep loan losses low.

» Commercial real estate: This category consists of loans secured by both owner-occupied and non-
owner occupied commercial real estate properties and represents the largest category of the Bank's
total loan portfolio. A majority of the loans in this category are secured by non-owner occupied
commercial properties such as hotels/motels, nursing homes, office buildings and retail strip centers.
Loans secured by agricultural land are also included in this category. The remainder of this segment
is secured by commercial real estate where the borrower occupies the real estate and uses if to
conduct their business. The non-owner accupied portion of this category presents the most credit risk
given the reliance on third-party rental income to service the regular payment but overall credit risk is
considered low. A substantial majority of these loans have secondary sources of repayment through
financially strong guarantors that are well known to the Bank. Loan'losses in this category have bean

minimal,
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 5. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses {Continued)

Residential real estate: This category consists of loans secured by some form of both owner-
occupied and non-owner occupied residential real estate. The category inchides loans for 1-4 family
home construction, home improvement, home equity lines of credit and dosed-end financing for 1-4
family properties. Mortgage loans held for sale on the secondary market are excluded from this
category. Losses in this category, compared fo the industry, have been relatively minimal. The Bank
does not originate sub-prime morigage loans. The higher risk area of this category is the non-owner
occupied portion of these loans which are often reliant on rental income as the primary source of
repayment.

Construction and land development; This category consists of loans secured by vacant land,
which includes developed commercial land, undeveloped commercial land, single family residential
lots, and lot development loans. These loans can carry a higher degres of risk because vacant land
can be harder to sell if it is foreclosed upon. These types of loans require larger cash investments to
reduce the risk. Historically, the losses have been low due to the Bank's conservative underwriting

standards.

Multifamily residentlal properties: This category consists of loans secured by residential dwellings
with more than four units. The loans are typically smaller apartment complexes or townhome projects,
and are o borrowers that have an established history with the Bank. The primary risk in this category
is that repayment is based on the occupancy level of the dwellings and the financial capacity of the

tenants.

Consumer loans and other: This category of loans consists of all other forms of consumer debt,
including automobiles, recreaticnal vehicles, debt consolidation, household or personal use,
education, taxes, mobile homes, personal lines of credit and overdrafts. Overdrafts are deposit
accounts that become unsecured loans when overdrawn by the deposit customer. Overdrafts are
monitored by account officers on a daily basis and are often cleared within g very short period of time.
it is bank policy to charge off any overdrafts that remain outstanding for more than 45 days.
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements

Note5. Loans and Alowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Loans by portfolio segment and class consisted of the foliowing at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in
thousands):

2017 2016

Commercial, financial and agricultural:

Commercial and industrial $ 899937 $ 108,724

Agricuktural 3.698 4,365
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied nonfarm, nonresidential 34,182 368,923

Other nonfarm, nonresidential properties 123,717 115,022

Farmland 1,351 4,102
Residential real estate;

1-4 family residential first liens 88,151 81,011

1-4 family residential second liens 1,558 1,638

Home equity lines of credit 14,708 13,750
Consfruction and land development 39,774 41,608
Multifamily 12,444 12,791
Consumer loans and other loans 8,287 6,988

433,787 424 929

Allowance for loan losses {4,805) (4,986)

$ 428882 § 419,043
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5.  Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The following table presents loans identified as impairéd by class of loans as of December 31, 2017 and
2016 (in thousands):

Unpaid Recorded Recorded

Contractual lvestment Invesiment  Tolal Average
Frincipal  With No Wih  Recorded Relted Recorded
Balance Allow ance Allow ance hwesiment Allowance Investment

2017
Cerrmercial, financial and agriculiural:
Commercial and industrial 5 8 5 39 § 43 $ B2 § 13 §
Agricultural 7 7 - 7
Commercial real estate:
Ow net occuplied nonfarm, nonres idential 58
Farmiand - - -
13

RE

Rasidential real estate:
1-4 family residential first fens 1,0
1-4 family residential sacond liens 59
Homa equity ines of credit -
Construction and land development 326 326 - 326
Consumer loans and other loans - -
545

2016:
Commerclal, financial and agricuktural:
Cormmercial and industrial $ - $§ - -
Agricukural 181 181 - 181 -
Cornmercial real estata:
Ow neér oscupied nonfarm, nonresidential - - - - .
Farmiand - - - - -
Residential regl astate:
1-4 family residential first kens 180
1=4 family residential sacond fiens 30
Home equity knes of credit -
Construction and lsnd developmant 280
Consumer loang and other lcans -

88y
B X

1 13

Interest income recognized on impaired loans was insignificant in 2017 and 2016. A loan is considered a
troubled debt restructuring {TDR) if the Company, for economic or legal reasons related to a debtor's
financial difficulties, grants a concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider. Concessions
granted under a TDR typically involve a temporary or permanent reduction in the interest rate at less than
a current market rate of interest or an extension of a loan's stated maturity date. Loans classified as
TDR's are designated as impaired. impaired loans totaling approximately $1,127,933 and $214,753 were
accounted for as troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively. There
were no TDR's that defaulted during the years 2017 and 2016.
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Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 5.  Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The following table presents the past due aging of the recorded investment in foans and loans on
nonaccrual as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Loans Leans B} or Loans 50 or
Current  30-89 Days More Days Tolal Past  More Days MNonaccrual Total
Loans PastDue PastDue Dueloans and Acoruing  Leans Loans
201T;

Commercial, financial and agriculfurak:

Commercial and industrial $89759 5 53 $ 2 § 75 § 2 $ 81§ 98,937

Agricultural 3,608 - - - - - 3,608
Commercial raal estata: -

Ow nar oceupled nonfarm, nonresidential 34,046 58 - 58 - 58 34,162

Other nonfarm, nonresidentlal properties 123,717 - - - - - 123,717

Farmiand 7,351 - - - - - 7,351
Residantia| raal estate:

1-4 family residential first dens B7.811 8 - 8 = 332 88,151

1«4 family residential second liens 1,558 - - - - - 1,568

Homme equiy ines of credi 14,708 - - - - - 14,708
Construction and land development 39,774 - - - . - 39,774
Mutltifamiy 12,444 - - € - - 12.444
Consumer lcans and other loans 8,287 - - - = - 8,287

I3 ¥ 19 5 2 3 A § = 3 AN :
2016:

Commerchl, financlal and agricuturak

Commercial and industrial 106692 § 32 § - §$ 32 3 - 0§ - $108724

Agriculiural 4,365 - - - s - 4,365
Commarcial resl estate:

Ow ner ocoupled nonfarm, nonresidential 36,623 - =R . - - 36,823

Other nonfarm, nonrasidential properties 115,022 - - - . o 115,022

Farmiand 4,102 - - - 2 5 4,102
Residential real estate:

1-4 family residential first kens 80,840 24 147 171 . 190 81,011

1-4 family residential second bens 1,638 - - - B - 1,638

Home equity fines of credit 13,750 - - - - - 13,750
Construction and land deveinpment 41,605 - - - - - 41,805
Muttif amily 12,761 - = - - . 12,791
Consumer loans and other loang 6,988 10 - 10 - - 6,998

4, ar -

Credit quality indlcators: The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant

information about the ability of horrowers to service their debt such as: current financial information,

historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends,
among other factors. The Company analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk,
Loans classified, intemally or by regulatory authorities, as substandard, special mention or pass watch
and past due loans are reviewed regularly by the Company to determine if appropriately classified or to

determine if the loan is impaired, The Company’s ioan portfolio is reviewed for credit quality on an annual
basis, with samples being selected based on loan size, credit grades, etc., to ensure that the Company's

management is properly applying credit risk management processes.
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Note 5. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Loans excluded from the scope of the annual review process are generally classified as pass credits until:
(a) they become past due; (b) management becomes aware of daterioration in the credit worthiness of
the borrower; or (c) the customer contacts the Company for a modification. In these circumstances, the
customer relationship is specifically evaluated for potential classification as o special mention,
substandard or doubtful, or could even be considered for charge-off. The Company uses the following
definitions for risk ratings:

Pass: Loans included in this category are performing as agreed with reliable, current financial
information on the borrower. Pass loans are fully secured per policy guidelines or unsecured to a high
net worth individual with strong liquidity. Generally, loans in this category do not have material policy
exceptions, have slight to moderate leverage and are lacking in notable weakness.

Pass watch: | oans included in this category may be showing some signs of financial deterioration or
apparent negative trends. Overdrafts or past due payments that are not mitigated or explainable may
result in a rating change from "pass” to “pass watch.” Loans that become 30 days delinquent may be
placed in this category. Other examples of loans that may be graded as “pasg watch® include:
apparent weakness in management, loans restructured to accommodate customer cash flow, loans
with a collateral shortfall which were not underwritten as unsecured, and agricultural loans with a one

year carry-over.

Special mention: Loans included in this category are currently protected but are potentially weak.
These loans constitute an undue and unwarranted credit risk but do not presently expose the Bank to
a sufficient degree of risk to warrant adverse classification, Close management attention is required.
New ioans should not be made which will immediately be identified in this Category. As a general nile,
for the purpose of calculating a loan loss reserve, loans in this category will have the historical loss
reserve percentage applied and will remain in a pool with loans thet are considered acceptable or
better when determining the general valuation reserves. Loans classified as special mention have
potential weaknesses that may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the
institution's credit position at some future date, Characteristics of loans in this category may include:
loans with marginal debt service coverage without mitigating factors, loans with technical, unmitigated
defautt, loans that become 60 days delinquent, loans to a company where there is concern the
company may fail, loans with unmitigated collateral short-fall.

Substandard: Substandard loans are inadequately protected by the current net worth and financial
capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified must have a well-
defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized
by the distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if the deficienciss are not corected.
Loss potential, while existing in the aggregate amount of substandard assets, does not have to exist
in individual assets classified as substandard. Loans in this category are evaluated individually as
outiined in the Bank’s loan policy when determining the general valuation reserve. Examples of
substandard loans may include [oans with debt service coverage below 1:1 without mitigating factors,
loans in default, work out loans, non-accrual loans, most loans that are 80 days delinquent and
agricultural loans with more than one-year carry-over unless fully secured and documented with an
independent source of repayment.

Doubtful: Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as

substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full
highly questionable or improbable, based on currently existing facts, conditions, and values,
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Note5.  Ldans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The following table presents the recorded investment in loans receivable (in thausands) by credit quality
indicator as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017:
Commercial, financial and agricultural:

Commercial and industrial $88281 $ 1,575 . $ 81 $ - $ 99937
Agricultural 3231 467 - - - 3,698

Comimercial real estate:
Ow nsr occupled nonfarm, nonresidential 32,714 1,156 = 292 = 34,162
Cther nonfarm, nonresidantial properties 122,318 1,399 - 123,717
Farmiand 7,351 - - - . 7,351

Residentfal real estate;
1-4 family residential firs1 bens 83,127 3,236 - 1.788 - 88,151
1-4 family residantial second fens 1,304 87 - 167 - 1,558
Home equily ines of credit 14,454 148 - 106 - 14,708
Construction and Jand development 38,752 284 - 738 - 39,774
Multifamily 12,444 - - - « 12,444
Consumer loans end other loans 8,155 4 - 1 - 8,287
ml Is I i Elmﬁ i = 3 EIEE ; = m. , ET

2016:

Cormmercial, financial and agricultural:

Commercial and industrial $1058584 $ 700 44 § - $ $106,724 -

Agricultural 4,184 - - 181 - 4,365
Commercial real estate;

Ow ner accupled nonfarm, nonreskiential 35,240 1,338 - 284 - 36,823

Other nonfarm, nonresidentlal properties 114,375 847 - - - 115,022

Farmiand 4,102 - - - - 4,102
Residential real estate:

1-4 famiy residential first liens 78,303 1,743 - 965 - 81,011

1-4 family residentlal second Esng 1,579 - - 59 - 1,638

Home aquity lines of credit 13,750 - - - - 13,750
Construction and land develapment 40,604 301 - 700 - 41,605
Multifamiy 12,791 - - - - 12,791
Consumer loans and other loans B,780 7 - 188 - 6,998

7.602 4,737 W T 237§ - Soagd

Pass

(Raling 1-5) PassANatch

Special
Mention

Substandard Daubtfu! Total
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Note 6.  Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The Company’s activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2018 by porifolic segment and disaggregated on the basis of the Company’s impairment methodology is
as follows (in thousands):

Commerclal Construction Consumer
Financlal & Commercial Reskdentlal & Land Loans &
Apricultural RealEstale Rea!Estata Davalopimant Multfamily OtherLoans Total
2017

Balanca at the beginning of the year ] 2 5 1782 § 22838 § 426 § 68 % "w § 4,968
Provision changed to eatnings 7 &2 B8 2 2 5 “i
Loans charged to the allowance (59) (40) (128} (3] - (80) (3m,)
Recoveries on loans previsusly

charged-off e 2 A5 = - 33 85

Balance at the snd of the year § 228 § 1785 § 2248 § 438 § 70 3% 92 § 44805

Peripd-ended amount aliacated 1o:
individuslly evaiusied for impalirment $ L - 3 87 & - 8 - 3 - 3 80
Collectively evaiusted for impalrment 2B 1706 2,91 433 T0 2 4825

Ending balance ] 26 % 17796 § 2248 $ 433 3 70 3 B2 § 4905

Loens:

Individuelly eveluated for impalrmant $ 8| % 56 3% 1396 § 326 § - 3 - % 1869
Collectivelyevaluated for impairment 13,548 85,172 03,021 30,448 RA44 8,287 43198
Ending balancs - § 15635 § W5ZN § DAAT S5 39774 3 BAM4 § B287 5 433,787
20%:

Balance at the beginning of the year $ M § 1822 § 2206 B 481 68 3 B4 3 5004
Provision charged to sarings 20 - - - - - 20
Loens chargedto the slowance (67} (43) {43) &5 - (62) (270)
Recovaries on loans previously

charged-off 1 3 00 - - 7 2

Balance at the end of the yoar §_ 277§ a2z § 22635 § 4% 8§ 8§ B3 3  dmes

P erlod-anded amount allocatedto:

Individually avalusted for impaiment - - 8 - $ 8 % - $ - $ - % ]
Colectively evalusted for knpaiment 277 1782 2250 426 88 L) 4973
Ending balanse $§ 278 $ 1782 § 2263 § 426 S 68 3 65§ A%96

Loans:
individunlly evaluated for impalment $ L - 8 $ 280 $ - % - & 520

Collsctively svalugied for impairment iore 166,047 96,778 4135 2,781 8,998 424408
8 _TOES § B6047 § 95399 & 41605 S DI § 6590 § 424,929

Ending balance
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Note 6. Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following (in thousands):
2017 2018
Land $ 4,749 § 4,749
Buildings and improvements 14,487 14,487
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7,878 7,938
Vehicles 222 269
Construction In progress 190 39
27,526 27,450
Less accumulated depreciation (11,598) {11,089)
$ 15,928 § 18,391
Note 7. Deposits
Deposits at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following (in thousands):
2017 2016
Amount Percent Amount Parcent
Nonhinteresi-bearing demand accounts % 180,710 M.7% $ 193,705 43.8%
Interesi-bearing checking accounis 38,226 8.8% 38,356 8.2%
Savings and limited access money market accounts 135,603 31.3% 144,327 32.6%
Cerlificates of depost lkess than $250,000 35,730 B8.29% 30,005 6.8%
Certificates of deposit $250,000 and greater 39,917 8.2% 34,528 7.8%
Individual retirement accounts less than $250,000 2,958 0.7% 2,747 0.7%
individual retirement accounts $250,000 and greater - 678 0.2% 661 0.1%
$ 433,822 100.0% §$ 443329 100.0%

At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities of ceificates of deposit and individusl retirement

accounts were as follows (in thousands):

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

At December 31, 2017 and 2018, brokered time de
$12,5623,000, respectively.

$ 63,677
12,299
2,156
833
318

-

7528

posits totaled approximately $11,019,000 and
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Note 8. Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

The Bank receives advances from the FHLB of Dalias under note payable arrangements with original
maturities ranging from two to fifteen years. Payments on these notes are made monthly. The weighted
average interest rate of all notes was 1.92% and 2.90% at December 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively,
Scheduled maturities of the notes at December 31, 2017 are as follows (in thousands):

2018 $ 15,259
2019 7,998
2020 617
2021 323
2022 163

$ 24,358

Along with the pledge of the Company's investment in FHLB of Dallas stock, a blanket floating lien on
certain loans of the Company is pledged as additional collateral on the advances. The amount available
for additional advances under the Company's borrowing arrangement with the Federal Home Loan Bank
was approximately $187,513,000 at December 31, 2017.

Note 9. Other Borrowings

The Company has a federal funds line of credit with one unaffiliated financial institution in the amount of
$20,000,000. This line of credit matures on June 30, 2018 and is provided on an unsecured basis;
however, the lending institution may require the line to be fully secured.after a stated number of days. The
Company alsc has a line of credit with another unaffiliated financial institution which is collateralized by
consumer loans totaling approximately $5,032,000 at December 31, 2017. The borrowing capacity under
this line is approximately 90% of the outstanding loan balances, or approximately $4,421,000 at
December 31, 2017. This line of credit has no stated maturity date; however, it may be canceled at the
sole discretion of the lending institution. There were no outstanding borrowings under these lines at
December 31, 2017 or 2016.

Note 10. Notes Payable

On January 19, 2016, the Company borrowed $7,000,000 from the First Natioha! Bankers Bank secured
by 100% of the outstanding common stock of Progressive Bank. The note is payable in monthly
installments ¢f principal and interest, bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate {4.50% at
December 31, 2017), and matures in January 2026. The Company may and has made additional
principal payments. The preceeds of the note were used to assist with the redemption of Preferred Stock
issued to the LI.S. Treasury’s Small Business Lending Fund. The Company must satisfy certain financial
covenants, none of which are expected to adversely impact the operations of the Company. Financial
covenants cover, among other things, the maintenance of minimum levels for regulatery capital ratios, &
maximum ratic of nonperforming loans to total icans and a maximum ratio of nonperforming assets to

primary capital.
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Note 10. Notes Payable (Continued)

The Company was in compliance with all covenants as of December 31, 2017. The outstanding balance
of the note was $5,510,000 as of December 31, 2017, Scheduled maturities of the note are as follows (in

thousands):

2018 $ B40
2019 840
2020 840
2021 840
2022 B40
Thereafter 1,310

$ 5,610

Note 11. Junlor Subordinated Debentures

Junior subordinated debentures are due to Progressive Statutory Trust | (Trust I} and Progressive
Statutory Trust Il (Trust Il), 100% owned non-consolidated subsidiaries of Bancorp. The debentures were
issued in conjunction with the Trusts’ issuance of Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Trust
Preferred Securities. With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid
interest on the Debentures are subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior
indebtedness of the Company. The interest is deferrable on a cumulative basis for up to 20 consecutive
quarters. The debentures bear the same interest rate and terms as the trust preferred securities

discussed below.,

On July 31, 2001, Bancorp, through a private placement, issued $8,000,000 (8,000 shares with a
liquidation amount of $1,000 per security) of Variable Rate Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities (TruPS)
through a newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiary, Progressive Statutery Trust | {Trust [). Bancorp made a
required equity contribution of $248,000 to form Trust |. Trust | invested the total proceeds from the equity
contribution and the securities sale in Variable Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures (the Debentures)
issued by Bancorp. The net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures were used to contribute capital to
the Bank and for general corporate purposes, The terms of the TruPS are such that they qualify as Tier |
capital under the Federal Reserve Board's regulatory capital guidelines applicable to bank hokling
companies on & consolidated basis.

With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid interest on the
Debentures are subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior and subordinated
indebtedness of Bancorp. Interest on the Debentures is payable quarterly commencing October 31, 2001
at a rate equal to the three-month LIBOR rate plus 3.58% (5.35% and 4.47% at December 31, 2017 and
2018, respectively). The interest is deferrable on a cumulative basis for up to 20 congecutive quarters. No
principal payments are due until maturity on July 31, 2031.

On July 31, 2006, the Debentures became redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of Bancorp.
None of the Debentures have been redeemed, In the event the Debentures are redeemed, a like amount
of TruP$S will be redeemed at the redemption price of $10, plus accrued interest to the dats of
redemption. Trust I's obligations under the TruPS are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Bancorp.
Any redemption is subject to Bancorp obtaining the prior approval of the Federal Reserve. The
debentures balance related to Trust | is $8,248,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, Under ASC Topic
810, Trust | does not mest the criteria for consclidation.
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Note 11.  Junior Subordinated Debentures (continued)

On September 20, 2007, Bancorp, through a private placement, issued $4,000,000 (4,000 shares with a
liquidation amount of $1,000 per security) of Fixed/Floating Rate Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities
(TruPS Il) through & newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiary, Progressive Statutory Trust Il {Trust H).
Bancorp made a required equity contribution of $124,000 to form Trust II. Trust Il invested the total
proceeds from the equity contribution and the securities sale in Fixed/Floating Rate Junior Subordinated
Debentures (the Debentures II) issued by Bancorp. The net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures II
were used 1o contribute capital to the Bank and for general corporate purposes. The terms of the TruPS Il
are such that they qualify as Tier | capital under the Federa! Reserve Board's reguiatory capital guidelines
applicable to bank holding companies on a consolidated basis.

With certain exceptions, the amount of the principal and any accrued and unpaid interest on the
Debentures is subordinated in right of payment to.the prior payment in full of all senior and subordinated
indebtedness of Bancorp. Interest on the Debentures is payable quarterly commencing December 15,
2007 at a rate equal to 6.338% through December 15, 2012 and then at a rate equal to the three-month
LIBOR rate pius 1.45% {3.04% at December 31, 2017) through maturity. The interest is deferrable on a
cumulative basis for up to 20 consecutive quarters. No principal payments are due until maturity on
December 15, 2037.

Bancorp may redeem the Dabentures I, in whole or in part, on or after December 15, 2012 at an amaunt
equal fo the principal amount of the debt securities being redeemed plus accrued arid unpaid interest on
such securities o the redemption date. Trust II's obligations under the TruPS Il are fuliy and
unconditionally guaranteed by Bancorp. Any redemption is subject to Bancorp obtairing the priar
approval of the Federal Reserve. The debentures balance related to Trust Il is $4,124,000 at

December 31, 2017 and 201€. Under ASC Topic 810, Trust ll does not meet the criteria for consolidation.

Note 12. Federal Income Taxes

Federal income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following
(in thousands):

2017 2016
Current income tax expense $ 2042 § 1,565
Deferred income tax benefit (197) (18)
Deferred income tax axpense related to
remeasurement of deferred taxes 897 -

$ 2742 $ 1547
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Note 12.  Federal Income Taxes (Continued)

Income taxes differed from the-amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 34% to
earnings before income taxes as a result of the following (in thousands):

2017 2016
Computed "expected” income tax expense § 2102 § 1,661
Tax-exempt municipal income, net of disallowed interest expense (54) (59)
Eamings on life insurance policies (71} 71)
Tax rate change (computed at 21%) 897 -
Other (132) 16

$ 2742 § 1,547

As a result of the enactment of the Tax Cut and Jobs Act in December 2017, the Company revalued it
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences and unrealized gains and losses on
available for sale securities using the new corporate tax rate of 21% that takes effect on January 1, 2018.
The effect of this revaluation was a one-time charge to income tax expense of $897,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2017,

On February 14, 2018, ASU No. 2018-02 was issued, allowing for a one-time reclassification of certain
deferred tax items that had been stranded in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss as a
result of tax adjustments made in connection with the enactment of the TCJA. The ASU allowed early
adoption of its provisions for those companies which had not yet issued their 2017 financial statements.
Accordingly, the Company early adopted its provisions and recorded a reclassification of §36,384 which
decreased retained eamings and decreased accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31,
2017. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the recorded
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes and are included with other assets on the balance sheet. Significant components of the
Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows {in

thousands):

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:
Allowaince for loan loszes $ 974 & 1,635
Stock options 86 188
Defered compensation . 698 992
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 59 75
Other 60 66
Total deferred tax assets 1,876 2,856
Daferred tax liabilities:
Premises and equipment 386 687
FHLB stock dividends 10 8
Other 20 29
Total deferred tax liabilities 428 ~ 724
Net deferred tax asset $ 1450 § 2132
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Note 13. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments
to extend ¢redit and standby letters of credit. Those instrumens involve, to varying degrees, elements of
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet. At December 3,
2017 and 2016, the approximate amounts of these financial instruments were as follows {in thousands):

2017 2018
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:
Commitments to extend credit $ 117058 $ 121,222
Standby letters of credit 2,955 1,257

-3 120013 $ 122479

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the.
contractual amount of these insiruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on balance shest instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each customer's credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis, The
amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based on
management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are written conditional commitments issued by the Company to quarantee the
performance of a customer to a third parly. The Company's policies generally require that letter of credit
arrangements contain security and debt covenants simifar to those contained in loan arrangements. In the
event the customer does not perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the third party,
the Company would be required to fund the commitment. The maximum potential amount of future
payments the Company could be required to make is represented by the contractual amount shown in the
table above. If the commitment is funded, the Company would be entitled to seek recovery from the
customer. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, no amounts have been recorded as liabilities for the
Company's potential obligations under these guarantees.
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Note 14. Falr Value Measuremeonts

Accounting guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. A fair value measurement
agsumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the
asset or [iability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The price in the principal (or most advantageous) market used to measurs the fair value of the
asset or liability shall not be adjusted for transaction costs. An orderly transaction is a transaction that
assumes exposure to the market for a period prior to the measurement date to allow for marketing
activities that are usual and customary for transactions involving such assets and fiabilities; it is not a
forced transaction. Market participants are buyers and sellers in the principal market that are

(i) independent, (i) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transact and (iv) willing to transact.

The guidance requires the use of valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach, the
income approach and/or the cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
infermation generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and liabilities. The
income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts, such as cash flows or eamings, to
a single present amount on a discounted basis. The cost approach is based on the amount that currently
would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost). Valuation techniques
should be consistently applied. Inputs to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or fiability. Inputs may be observable, meaning those that
reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on
market data obtained from independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect the
reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. In that regard,
the guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.
The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 Inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observabie for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. These might include quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability (such as interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, credit risks, etc.)
or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by market data by correlation or
other means.

Leval 3 Inputs: Uncbservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an
entity's own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the assets or liabilities.

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fajr value, as well as the
general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is et forth below. During
2017 there have been no changes in valuation methodologies compared to 2018 and no transfers

between levels.
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Note 14.  Fair Value Measursments (continued)

The following table represents assets and liabilities reported on the consolidated balance sheets at their
fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2017 and 2018 by level within the falr value

measurement hierarchy:

Fakr Value Megsurements af Reporting Date Using
{Collars in Thousands)
Asgsels/ Quoted Frices
Liabilties in Active Markets  Significant Other Significant
Neasured  for Mentical AssetsObservable inputz Unobservable Inputs

at Falr Value {Level 1) {Leve] 2) (Level 3)
2017
Measured on a recurring basis:
Assets;
Ihvesiment securities avallable for sale:
U.S. treasury § 7451 8 7451 § < § -
U.S. governmant agency obligations 20,841 - 20,841 -
Residential morigage-backed securtties 8242 . 6,242 -
Collateralized mortgage oblgations 1,448 - 1,446 -
2018:
Measured on a recurring basis:
Aszels:
Investment securities avallable for sale: B
U.S. treasury $ 494 3 494 & - $ -
U.S. government agency obligations 24,112 - 24112 -
Residential mertgege-backad securities 5,072 - 5,072 -
Coftateralized morigage oblgations 1,967 - 1,067 -

Level 1 securities include actively-traded government bonds, such as certain United States Treasury and
other United States government securities. All other securities available for sale are classified within
Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. The Company obtains fair value measurements for investment
sacurities from an independent pricing service. ‘The fair value measurements consider obgervable data
that may mciude dealer quotes, market epreads, cash flows, the U.S, Treasury yield curve, live trading
levels, trads execution data, market consensus prepayment spreads, credit information and the bond's
terms and conditions, among other things.

The Company has no nonfinancial assets or nonfinancial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis.
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Note 14.  Fair Value Measurements {Continued)

The following table presents the assets carried on the consolidated balance sheet, by caption and by
level in the fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2017 and 2016, for which a nonrecurring change in fair

value has been recorded:

Fair Value M easuraments at Reporting Date Using

(Dollers n Tho uesanda)
Assets/ Guated Prices Signiiicant
Liabiltles In Active M wkeis Significant Other Unobaarvable
M easured for kentical Assets ~ Obaervable Inputs Inputs
at Falr Valua {Level ) {Level 2) {Leval 3)
207
M easwved on & nonrecurring basis:
Assnls;
impaired loans $ 1465 $ ~ & 3 1465
Other real estate 202 . . 202
0%8;
M easured on & horfecurring basis:
Assels:
paired ogns $ B78 & - % R | ]

Gitverreal estate 238 -

Impaired loans are classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. The fair value of impaired loans is
derived in accordance with ASC Topic 310, Receivables. The fair value of impaired loans is based on the
fair value of the collateral discounted based on internal criteria. Impaired loans are primarily comprised of
collateral-dependent commercial and real estate loans.

Other real estate owned is measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis (upon initial recognition or
subsequent impaiment).

Other real estate owned is classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. When transferred from the
loan portfolio, other real estate is adjusted to and subsequently carried at fair value less estimated selling
costs. The fair value is determined using an external appraisal process, discounted based on internal

criteria,
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Note 14.  Fair Value Measurements (Continuad)

The estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments is as foflows at December 31, 2017 and
2016 (in thousands):

2017 2016
Canying Estimated Cartying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets:

Cash and e¢ash equivalents $ 18737 $ 18737 $ 16318 $ 16318
Time deposits in other financial

institutions 100 100 4,827 4,827
Securities available for sale 35,980 35,980 31,645 31,645
Securities held to maturity 8,622 6,585 8,719 8,578
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,943 1,843 625 625
Accrued interest receivable 2,030 2,030 2,097 2,097
Loans, net 428,882 427,833 419,943 418,038
Leans held for sale 447 447 468 468

Financial liabilities:

Deposits liabilities 433,822 433,874 442 330 442,410
FHLB advances 24,358 24,248 8,221 9,313
Notes Payabie 5,510 5,610 6,400 6,400
ESOP debt commitment 234 234 357 3s7
Junior subordinated debentures 12,372 12,372 12,372 12,372
Accrued interest payable 477 477 203 203

Note 15. Benefit Plans

401(k) plan: The Company has a defined contribution profit sharing plan for all employees that meet
certain age and service requirements. Under the plan, employees may elect to defer up to 80% of their
salary subject fo the Intemal Revenue Service limits. The Cormpany may, at its discration, contribute to
the plan an amount determined annually by the Board of Directors. The Company’s expense for the plan
was $257,731 and $341,100 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively.

Salary continuation plan: The Company has entered into salary continuation agreements with certain
key employees to be paid over a period of fen to fiteen years after the employees’ retirement. The .
Company has purchased single-premium life insurance policies on each of the individuals covered te fund
the future obligation. The cash surrender value of these policies totaled approximately $9,950,000 and
$9,743,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Salary continuation payable totaled
approximately $3,261,000 and $2,848,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively and is included
in other liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet. Three participants reached retirement age and
received payments under the plan in 2017. The expenses incurred of $529,000 and $238,000 are
inciuded in salaries and employee benefits in the accompanying income statement for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively.
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Progressive Bancorp, inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 15. Benefit Plans {Continued)

Employee stock ownership plan (ESOP): Effective in 1998, the Company established the ESOP. Under
this Plan, there is an Employee Stack Ownership trust which holds the investments of the Plan. The
Company was designated as the Plan Sponsor and the Bank was designated as an Employer of the Plan.
The Plan covers substantially all employees who qualify as to age and length of service. Contributions to
the Plan are generally invested by the Plan in the common stock of the Company. Contributions to the
Plan by the Bank are at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company and the Bank; however,
contributions must be sufficient to pay any current obligations of the Plan.

During 2008, the Plan borrowed $1,000,000 from an unaffiliated bank o purchase 19,841 shares of
Company stock. The 2009 note is payable in monthiy installments consisting of principal payments of
$8,333 plus accrued interest, bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (4.50% at
December 31, 2017), and matures in September 2019.

During 2010, the Plan borrawed $235,000 from an unaffiliated bank to acquire 5,000 shares of Company
stock. The 2010 note is payable in monthly installments consisting of principal payments of $1,958 plus
accrued interest, bears interast at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (4.50% at December 31, 2017), and
matures in June 2020.

At December 31, 2017 and 20186, the Plan had approximately $234,000 and $357,000, respectively,
outstanding related to the notes, which are guaranteed by the Company and collateralized by the
Company’s common stock.

In accordance with ASC Topic 718-40, Employee Stock Ownership Plans, the Company has recorded the
loans as obligations of the Company, with the amounts outstanding in the balance sheets classified as
ESOP debt commitment, and the issued shares held by the lender as collateral clagsified in a contra-
equity account, unearned ESOP shares. During 2017 and 2016, 2,484 and 2,484, respectively, were
released as principal payments were made. The remaining 4,721 shares are considered suspense shareg
held by the Plan. The fair value of the unearmed ESOP shares at December 31, 2017 was $524,020 or
$111.00 per share, which was based on a third party valuation as of December 31, 2016. This was the
most current valuation performed. The. Company’s contributions to the ESOP consist of debt service
payments to the trust and any additional voluntary payments made. During 2017 and 201 6, the Company
made contributions of approximately $138,000 and $138,000, respectively, to the ESOP for debt service
payments. The contributions for each year will be divided among the efigible participants employed on
December 31 in the proportion that each such participant's compensation, as defined in the Plan, for that
year which bears to the compensation for all such participants in the Plan.

Following are principal maturities for the notes payable as of December 31, 2017 {in thousands):

2018 $ 124
2018 29
2020 11

$ 234
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Note 16. Stock Compensation

Stock options: Stock options are periodically granted by the Company to key employees with an
exercise price equal to the stock’s estimated fair market value at the date of grant, The stock options
have varying terms and vest and become fully exercisable during various years from the date of grant.

The following is a summary of the status of the Plan during 2017 and 2016:

2017 2018
Weighted Aggregate Weighted
Number Average Infringic Nurnber Average
of Shares Exercise Price Valye of Sharas Exercise Frice
Outstanding, beginning of year 64836 S 50.03 65036 § 50.37
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year {3.500) 32.53 - -
Forfelted during the year (200) 53.00 {200) 53.00
Bxpired during the year 51,800) 51.33 - -
Cutstanding, end of year 50336 ¢ ‘51,37 § 3,083,782 6483 § 50.03
Exercisable, at end of year 59,336 & 51.39 84,438 § 50.34

The options outstanding at December 31, 2017 have exercise prices ranging from $35 to $55. At
December 31, 2017, the weighted average remaining contractual fife of 46,436 options outstanding and
exercisabie is .8 years. The remaining 12,800 options outstanding and exercisable can be exercised up
to 91 days after employment is terminated.

The intrinsic vaiue of options exercised during 2017 was approximately $148,660. No options were
exercised during 2016.

Total compensation expense for options recognized during 2017 and 2016 was $370 and $4,000,
respectively. At December 31, 2017, there will be no future compensation expense related to options

granted.



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 16. Stock Compensation {Continued})

Restricted stock: The Company has granted restricted stock awards to certain employees of the
Company. The stock awards have varying terms and vest over four or five years from the date of grant.
The shares become free of restrictions on the vesting date if the grantee remains a full time employee of
the Company. The shares become free of restrictions prior to the vesting date upon early involuntary -
termination, other than termination for cause, death, or disability, or at the discretion of the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The following table summarizes the activity in nonvested shares for the
year ended December 31, 2017

Weighted
Awerage

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonmvested restricted stock, December 31, 2016 7380 $ 74.56
Granted during the year 1.1Q0 95.27
Vested during the year {1,845) 70.03
Forfeited during the year (1,040) 60.00
Nonwested restricted stock, December 31, 2017 5506 $ 59.73

Total compensation expense related to restricted stock awards was $129,000 and $155,000 during 2017
and 2018, respectively. At December 31, 2017, future compensation expense related to restricted stock
awards is approximately $387,000 and will be recognized over a remaining pariod of five years,

Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in certain legal actions arising from nomal buginess activities. Management
believes that the outcome of such proceedings will not materially affect the financial position, results of
aperations or cash flows of the Company.

Note 18. Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has and expects to continus to have transactions including
borrowings with its employees, directors and their affiliates. In the opinion of Mmanagement, such
transactions are on the same terms, including interast rates and collateral requirements, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons. The aggregate amount of
such loans was approximately $8,657,000 and $8,785,000 at December 31, 2017 and 201 6, respectively.
Additionally, at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank had unfunded commitments for such loans of
approximately $4,006,000 and $4,473,000, respectively. The approximate amount of payments, including
interest, received on these loans was $8,559,000 and the approximate amount of new loans funded was
$7,090,000 in 2017.
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Note 19.  Significant Group Concentrations

Most of the Company’s business activity is with customers located within Louisiana, Such customers are
normally algo depositors of the Company. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in
Note 5. Generally, the Company’s loans are collateralized and are expected 1o be repaid from cash flow
or proceeds from the sales of selected assets of the borrowers.

The distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of Joans outstanding.
Commercial and standby letters of credit are granted primarily to commercial borrowers,

Note 20. Regulatory Matters

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by banking agencies, Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effact on the Company's financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action,
the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that invoive quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and
certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices, The capital amounts
and classification are also subject fo qualitative judgments by the regidators about components, risk
weightings, and other factors.

In July 2013, the FDIC and other regulatory bodies issued final rules consisting of minimum requirements
that increase both the quantity and quality of capital held by banking organizations. The final rules are a
result of the implementation of the BASEL Ili capital reforms and various Dodd-Frank Act related capital
provisions and impact all U.S. banking organizations with more than $500 million in assets. Consistent
with the Basel international framework, the new rule includes & new minimum ratio of Common Equity
Tier 1 (CET1) to risk-weighted assets of 4.5 percent and a Common Equity Tier 1 capital conservation
buffer of 2.5 percent of risk-weighted assets. The rule also raised the minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted assets from 4 percent to 6 percent and includes a minimum Leverage ratio of 4 percent for
all banking organizations. Regarding the quality of capital, the new rule emphasizes Common Equity

Tier 1 capital and implements strict eligibility criteria for regulatory capital instruments. The new rule also
improves the methodology for calculating risk-weighted assets to enhance risk sensitivity. The new rule is
subject to a four year phase in period for mandatory compliance and the Company is required to begin fo
phase in the new rules beginning on January 1, 2015. Management believes that after the phase in of the
new capital standards, the Company and the Bank wili remain classified as “well-capitalized.”

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth In the table below) of Total, CET1 and Tier | capital (as defined in
the regulations) to risk weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier | capital (as defined) to average assets
(as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2017, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it Is subject.

As of December 31, 2017, the Bank's cepital ratios exceeded those levels necessary to be categorized as
“welt capitalzed” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as “well
capitalized,” the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, CET1, Tier | risk-based and Tier[
leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no conditions or events since December a1,
2017 that management believes have changed the Bank’s category.
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Notes to Consolldated Financlal Statements

Note 20. Regulatory Matters (Continued)

A comparison of the Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios to required capital amounts and ratios is
presented in the following table (in thousands):

To Be Vel
Capitalzed Under
For Capltal Prompt Correclive
Actual Adeguacy Purposes Action Provislons
Amount  Ratio  Amount | Rafic  Amount  Falp
2017
Total capital te risk w eighied assels $ 64887 1353% 3§ 44,597 830% % 47856  10.00%
Tier | capital to risk w eighted assets 59982 1251% 35,008 7.30% 38,363 8.00%
CET1 capital to risk weighted assets 59,982 12.51% 27,813 5.80% 31,170 6.50%
Tier { capital o average assets 59982 11.12% 21,679 4.00% 25,974 5.00%
20186:
Total capital to risk weighted assets ‘% 63,129 1341% 5§ 37,689 860% $ 47,085 10.00%
Tier 1capital to risk welghted assets 58,143 12.35% 28,252 6.80% 37,669 8.00%
CET1 capital to risk w elghted assets 58,143 12,35% 21,189 5.10% 30,606 6.50%
Tier | capital o average assels 58143 11.01% 21,124 4.00% 26,408 5.00%
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Supplementary Information

The Board of Directors
Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 and have issued our report thereon which
contains an unqualified opinlon on those financial statements. See page 1. Our audits were conducted for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The consolidating
information s presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of the individual companies and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibifity of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly o the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consclidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial stafements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated In all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole. ’

RSKH US LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 28, 2018

FOYER GF BERG UnBERS YO0

FUDIT FTRE CONBULTING



Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule 1 - Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2017

{In Thousands)
Progressive
Bank and Progressive Consofidated
Subsidiary  Bancorp, he.  Himinations Tolal
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 7883 § 2414 § (24149) & 5 7883
Interest-bearing deposits 10,854 - - 10,854
Time deposits in other financial institutions 100 - - 100
Securities available for sale 35,980 - = 35,880
Securities held to maturity 6,622 - - 8,622
Investment in subskiiaries - 58,761 {59,761) b -
Loans hek for sala 447 - - 447
Loans, net 429413 - (831) ¢ 428,882
Premises and equipment, net 14,9756 853 . 15,828
Bank ow ned ife insurance 9,850 - - 8,850
Other real estate ow ned 202 - 9 202
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1943 - - 1,843
Other assets ' 5,921 869 . 8,780
Total assets $ 524280 $ 63997 $ (82,706) $ 525581
Liabllities and Stockholders' Equity
Deposits:
Noninteresi-bearing $ 183124 § - 3 (2449 a § 180710
interast-bearing 253112 . 253,112
Total deposits 436,235 - (2473) ~ 493,822
Federal Homs Loan Bank advances 24,358 - . 24,358
Netes payable - 6,041 (531} ¢ 5510
ESOP debt commitment 234 - 234
Junior subordinated debentures - 12,372 - 12,372
Other kabiities 3,835 122 - 4,057
Total liabilities 464,529 18,768 (2,645) 480,353
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock - - - -
Common stock 780 2,803 {780) b 2,603
Paiil-in capital 25407 13.503 (26407) b 13,503
Retainetl earnings 33,785 33,959 (33,785) b 33,858
Accumulated other comprehensive income (221) (221) 21 b (221)
Unearned ESOP shares - (234) - (234)
Treasury steck - {4,382) - {4,382)
Total stockholders’ squity 59,761 45228 ~(59,761) 45,228
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity § 524280 $ 63997 $ (62706) $ 525581

See independent auditor’s report on the supplementary information.
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule 2 - Consolidating Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31, 2017

{In Thousands}
Progressive
Bank and Progressive Consolidated
Subsidiary  Bancorp, nc.  Himinations Total
Interest iIncoms:
Loans, including fees F 21328 § - § (29) & § 21,288
Securities:
Texable 483 - - 483
Nontaxable 162 162
interest-bearing deposits 180 - - 180
Other - 15 = 18
22,138 B 25 ~ 22,118
Interest expense:
Deposis 974 - . 974
FHLB advances, FNBB Note Payable and other 274 (29) e real
Junier subordinated debentures - 508 - 500
1,600 783 29) 2,254
Net interest income 20,633 (768) - 19,885
Provision for loan logses - 144 - “ 144
Net Interest income after provision for loan losses 20,482 {768) - 18,721
Neninterest incoms:
Equity in eamings of subskilary - 4,923 (4823 o -
Service charges and fees 2877 - . 26877
Trust and brokerage department 884 - 884
Eamings on ife insurance polcies 208 - - 208
nsurance commissions 13 - - 13
Gain on sale of other real estate ow ned 18 w A 16
Other 96 8% (€¢9) e 26
3,894 5,022 (5,022) 3,604
Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and emplyee benefits 10,314 - - 10,314
Occupancy 1,770 84 B9 e 1,755
Furniture and equipment 640 - - 640
Technology 1,208 . = 1,208
Professional feas 298 172 - 1,168
Advertising and business development 717 - & M7
AT debit card expense 443 N . 443
Deposits Insuranca assessment 142 s - 142
Loss on sale of assels § - - ]
Other 1,028 7 = 1,045
17201 263 ~{99) 17,435
Income before income taxes 12 3991 (4,823) 6,780
income tax expensa 2,189 653 - 2,742
Notincome $ 4623 $ 3438 § (4.623) $§ 3438

See Indepsndent audlior's report on the supplementary information,
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Progressive Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Description of Ellminating Entries

Year Ended December 31, 2017

a. To eliminate intercompany cash and deposits.

b. To eliminate investment accounts against the stockholders’ equity of the consolidated
subsidiaries.

c. To eliminate intercompany payables and receivables.

d. To eliminate equity in earnings of subsidiaries.

e. Te eliminate intercompany income and expense,
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Response to (4){c):

List names of other companies (include partnershipsj if 25% or more of voting
securities are keld (List names of companies and percentage of voting securities held)

[[] NO - I do not own, control, or hold with the power to vote 25% or more of the voting
securities in any Company (including options, warrants or other Securities or rights that
can be converted into or exercised for voting securities), or proportionate interest in a

partnership.
YES - Sce below supplemental list

(3)(c) Title & Position with Other Businesses (include names of {4)(c) List names of other
other businesses) companies (includes
pannerships) If 25% or more of
voting securities are held (List
names of companies and
percentage of vating securities
held)
Managing Member - Airport, LLC 25.00%
Managing Member - Albuquerque Hospitality, LLC 45.00%
Managing Member - Alexandria Lodging, LLC 25.00%
Managing Member - Billings Hospitallty, LLC 58.66%
Managing Member - Brazos Hotel Management, LLG 33.33%
Managing Partner - Brazos Hotel Partners, LTD 33.30%
Maraging Member - BW Hotels, LLC 99.00%
Managing Member - Casa Grand Hqépimlity, LLC 95.00%
Managing Member - Chandler Hospitality, L.L.C 95.00%
Managing Member - Columbia Hospitality, LLC 66.66%
Managing Member - D&G Enterprises qf Ouachita Parish, L.LC 100.00%
Managing Member - Develotel Omaha, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - District Hotel Group, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - Eagle-Meridian Lodging, LLC 31.68%
Managing Member - East Houston Hospitality, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - Forbes Hotels, LLG 85.00%
Managing Member - Fremaux Hospitality, LLC N/A
Managing Member - Greenwood County, LLC 100.00%
Managing Member - Harmony Mezz, LLC 33.33% .
Managing Member - Harvard, LLC 100.00%
Managing Member - Highland Ranch Hospitality, LLC 31.66%
Managing Member - iMM-ICH, LLC 100.00%
Managing Member - IMM PAYROLL, LL.C 100.00%
Managing Member - InterCoastal Hospitality, LLC 99.00%
Managing Member - InterMountain Management, LLC 100.00%
Managing Member - Issaquah Hospitality, LLC 40.00%
Managing Member - Jasmine C-|, LLC 100.00%
~ 50.00%

Managing Member - Julyn, LLC

585498v2 3




(3){c) Title & Posttion with Other Businesses {include names of

(4){c} List names of other

other businessas) companies (includes
partnerships) if 25% or more of
voting securities are held {List
names of companles and
percentege of voting securities
held)
Managing Member - Lafayette Lodging, LLC 89.00%
Managing Member - Lake Charles Hotel Resort Group, LLC 37.50%
Managing Member - Lakeland Lodging, LLC 31.66%
Managing Member - Lakewood Hospitality, LLC 95.00%
Managing Member - Lawton Hotels, LLC 99.00%
Meanaging Member - Lawton Lodging, LLC 100.00%
Managing Member - Legacy Lodging Baverage Company, LLC 99.00%
Managing Member - Legacy Lodging, LLC 95.00%
Managing Member - Lexington Hospitality, LLC 45.00%
Managing Member - LJ Hotels, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - Loveland Hospitality, LLC 47.50%
Managing Member - Madison Lodging, LLC 25.00%
Managing Member - Miramar Beach Lodging, LL.C 33.33%
Managing Member - Moore Hotels, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - MTW Hotels, LLC 33.00%
Managing Member - MW Hotels, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - Nampa Hospiltality, LLC 45.00%
Managing Member - Olympia Lodging, LLC 99.00%
Managing Member - Orlando Condo, LLC 100.00%
Managing Member - Paim Desert Mezz, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - Panama City Condo, LLC 100.00%
Managing Member - Prien Lake Hospitality, LLC 33.33%
Managing Member - Puliman Lodging, LLC 45,00%
Managing Member - Reno Airport Mezz, LLC 33.33%
Managing Member - Reno Hospitality Mezz, LLC / 33.33%
Managing Member - Richiand Hospitality, LLC 47.50%
Managing Member - St. Louis Partners, LLC 82.86%
Menaging Member - San Luis Obispo Hospitality, LLC 45.00%
Managing Member - Scottsdale inns, LLC 25.00%
Managing Member - Seacrast Beach Home, LLC 100.00%
Managing Member - Selman Hangar, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - SLO Lodging, LLC 45.00%
Managing Member - Sonterra Hotel investors, LLC 99.00%
Managing Member - Stemmons Hospitality, LLC . 40.00%
Managing Member - Sunnyvale Hospitality, LLC 47.50%
Managing Member - Tampa Hospltality, LLC 45,00%
Managing Member -Tower Hospltality, LLC * 99.00%
45.00%

Managing member - TPS Fandango, LLC

685498v2 4




(3)(c) Title & Position with Other Businesses (include names of

{4)(c) List names of other

other businesses) companies {(includes
partnerships) if 25% or more of
voling securities are held (List
names of companies and
percantage of voling securities
held)
President - TPS Fayettevilie, Inc. 100.00%
Managing Member - Tukwila Hospitality, LLC 57.49%
Managing Member - University Hospitality, LLC 33.33%
Managing Member - WIM-FWB Investors, LLLC, 50.00%
Managing Member - WIM-FWB Investors #2,LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - WIM-FWB R|, LLC 100.00%
Managing Member - WIM-SLT CY, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - WIM-SWV CY, LLC 50.00%
Managing Member - WIM-SWV R, LLC 50.00%
Menaging Member - WIM-WDM Investors, LLC 45.00%
Managing member - Yellowstone Hotels, LLC 99.00%

I, Dewey F. Weaver, Jr., the below signed Progressive Bancorp, Inc, Director, Executive
Officer or Principal Securities Holder, do hereby certify that the above listed information
is true and complete as of the date set forth below. I further acknowledge that the above
information may be used both internally for internal and/or compliance auditing purposes
and will be made available for federal and/or state regulatory review.

Iacknowledge my responsibility to keep the Holding Company informed, on a timely basis,
of any new relationships, changes in relationships or cessation of relationships which may
afiect the above provided information before I execute a future worksheet,

LAl

Sign%

685498v2 5

March 9, 2018
Date




[[] NG -1 do not own, control, or hold with the power fo vote 25% or more of the voting
securities in any Company (including options, warrants or other securities or rights
that caa Le converted into or exercised for voting securities), or proportionate interest

in a partpership.

YES ~ See below supplemental list

WMWMMMS&S (include rismes of | (4)(¢) List nemes of otier
other bucinazses) cumpanies (includes
partnarshipe) I¥ 25% or more of
voing sacuritios ars hreld (List
naries of cempaniss and
percertage: of voting securiles
held)
POA of Partners-Bourbon & St. Louis Realty Company {A General
Partnership) 100% (Power of Attorney)
Partner via LLC-Brickhaven Apartments, LF NA
| Mznager and Member via LLC-CMS Apartments, LLC 100% via LLC and Trusts
Manage; and Membe; via LLC-CMS PE Fund I, LLC 100% via LLC and Trusts
| iManager aind Member via LLC-CMS PE Fund #i, LLC 100% via LLC and Trusts
Manager and Member via LLC-CMS PE Fund I, LLC 100% via LLC and Trusts
‘Managet and Member via LLC-CMS PE Fund IV, LLC 100% via LLC and Trusts
Member via LLC-Collaborative Gupital, LLC WA
Member via LLC-Collaborative Capital, LLC NA
Member and Matiager Colorado Developmerit Partners, L.L.C. 31.6%
ilember-Cross Bayou, LLC NA
| sharehulder via LLC-Cyber Reef Solutions, Inc. NA
| Limited Partner via LLC-DD Bossier, P NA
Control the Member and Manager-Ferndogk, [LC 100% via LLC
Limited Partner via IRA-GulliverOne Limited Partnership NA
Limited Partner via IRA-Guiliver Structured Credit
LP. NA
POA of Sole Member of Strauss Interests, LLC-JOPA 53.33% via POA and LLC
(Director of SCi, which holds a controlling interest}-Gramin,
LLC NA
26.533% via individual and
Director, Member and Officer-Guif Inland LLC Trustee

Director, Member and_Officer-Gul South Warehouse, LLC

36% Individual and viy POA

POA of Partners-Hurwit? Mintz Realty Company (A General

Pavtnership) 100% (Power of Attorney)
Director, Member and Oificer-jean and Saul A. Mintz

Foundation: : ] NA

Rirector, Member and Officer-lean and Szul A, Mintz Faraily

Foundation NA
| Manager-iidM Northshore, LLC 85.0%

6859avy 3



[ (3){c) Tile & Position with Other Businesses (inciude nemnies of
other busingsses)

(4)(c) List names of other
companias (inciudes
peitnerships) if 25% or more of
votingy securities are hald (List
nzme$ of compznies and
percantsage of voting securities
hisld)

Litnited Fariner and Manager of General Partne:-Londoinderry,

33% LP Interest

Director, Shareholder and Officer-MMK Management Corp

LP 7
Director and Oificer-Loucon, LLC o MA
Diractuv-Louisiana Companies NA
Limited Partner via LLC-Louisiana Fund II, LP NA
Diractor, Secretary, Custodian of Recorgs-Loulsianians for
|_American Secuiity Political Action Committee (LASPAC) NA
74% LP Intergst via LLC; 1%
Partner via LLC-LSMD, LP Interast GP via LLC
Director, Member and Cfficer-MCS Two, LLC 33.0%
| Control the Managcr-MFivi Apartment Homes |, LLC 100% via LLC and Trusts
Manager-ivii:M Apariment Hoines Il, LLC 40,0%
| Memnber-MEM Investinent Managemendt, LIC D5.0%
16.9% Individually, as POA and as
Parinei-MG2 Pertnership (A Geaeral Partnership) Trustee
Dirécior and Oficer-Miniz Group, LLC 100% as POA
A -
Director, Officar and Metnbar-finiz Hoidings, LLC 13 MrindinOUET and s Trastap |
49.5% through various entities
Director, Member and Officer-Minkz PE Fund |, LLC (As of 12/31/2015)
47.6% through vailous entities
Director, Member end Officer-Miniz PE Fund )i, LLC e (As of 12/31/2015)
: 48% through varivus entities {As
Director, i4ember and Officer-Mintz PE Fund I, LLC of 12/31/2015)
47.5% through various entities
Direcinr, Membsi and Officer-Mintz PE Fund IV, LLC (As of 12/31/2015)
#7.5% throuzh various eniities
Director, Member and Officer-Mintz PE fund V, LLC {As of 12/31/2015)
Director, Member and Officer-Mintz PE Fund VI, LLC NA
29.4% through varinus entities
Directot, Member and Gfficer-Mintz PE Fund VII, LLC {As of 12/31/2015)
25% threugh various entities (As
Director, Mernber and Officer-Mintz PE Fund VIII, LLC ef 12/31/2015) -
TED >= 25% through various
Director, Meinber and Gfficer-Mintz PE Fund IX, LLC erititias
Limited Partner-Middle Kingdorn Investments, SPC (Middle
Kingdom Vaiue Fund, SP) NA
Member-Miro Investments, LLC NA
33.3%

GE9R2 ¥

ity



(3)(c) Title & Posilion vsitt Other Businessos (inciude names of

(4)(c) List nrames of other

Diractur-NO/LA Angel Network, LLC {not-for profit)

uvther busihessas) - companias (includas
parinerships) if 25% or more of
valing secuiiiles sre helg (List
nemes of cempanies and
fercentage of voting securiilas
held)

Manager-MOS0 Bourbon & St. Louis, LLC _ NA T

Manager-vQGO, LLC _ NA

Member via LLC-Network Feundatiori Techiologles, LLC NA

ivieniber via LLC and Manager-Nifty Angel Partners, LLC 63.33% via LLC, POA and Trustee

NA

Director, Mcmber and Officar-orthgate Development, LLC

33,34 Individual and Trustee

Chairman of Doard of Directors and CEQ-PacTec, Inc.

50% via Voting Trust and Trustee

Director, Metnber and Officer-Panther I, LLC

52.12 individual, Trusts and POA

Diracior, Membher and Officer-PYWO, LLC

60% Invididual and via POA

Member via LLC-The Retreat at ‘Westiake, LLC NA
Member via LLC-The Retreat at Westiake II, LLC NA
Member by POA-SA Mintz, LLC 100% by POA
Director and Officer-S&D Realty Corp. 33.67% as Trusiee T
iember-Sally Properties, LLC . s0.0%
Direcior, Member and Orificer-SCivl, LLC o N

| Member-Scottsdale Inns, LLC 25.0% ]
Member-SDR&R Pertners, LLC 34.3%
Member-Sealy Asiley Ridge, LLC . MA
Member-Sesly Hoart of Bosslat, LLC HA
Limited Partnei-S2aly Heatherwilde, LP NA
Limitad Partner -Sealy Strategic Equity Partners, LP NA N
Mamber-Sealy Sunflower, LLC NA T
sharaholder via LLC-Scrvato Corporation NA
Lirnited Partner via LLC-SFA Boston 2016, LP A
Limited Pzrtner via LLC-Sharpstown Apartments, Ltd. NA
Series A and AA Units-SmartPak, LLC NA
Member via LLC-Solis Holdings, LLC 50.0% ]
wianaging Director znd POA foi sole meinber-Strauss Interssts,
Lc 100% as POA
Director and Office; -Sirauss Properties, LLC - NA
Diractor and Cificar-Stiauss Tallulah, LLC NA
Meniber and Manager-Sunbait Distribution Systeins, LLC 50%s via LLC and POA
Partner-Tommo Partner;hip 57.0%
Memt.er-Totomo, LLC = - 46.3%
iviember via LLC-Wast Woods taven, LLC NA
Mernber via LLC-Wust Woods Hiven li, LLC NA
Co-Trustee-Alexandra Rose Mann Trust NA
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[ (3)(c) Tide & Fosition with Otier Bushiesses {inchxis nemes of | (4){c) List namos of cher

other busingsses) toliipAnies {includes
partnershins) if 25% or more of
voiing zecurities are held (List
nnes of companies and
ficetiiags of voting sacurities
heid)
Co-Trustee-Isabelic Nicole Mann Trust NA
Co-Trustee-The Georgia Caryn Wlann Trust NA
| Co-Trustea-The Strauss Edward Mann Trust NA
Co-Trustee-Carolyn Mintz Kaplan 1935 Famiiy Trusts NA
| Trusvee-Clifford Strauss Mintz Granior Trust NA
| Co-Trustee-Glynn Ross Kaplan 1991 Trust NA
Co-Trustee-Jack Mintz Xaplan 1996 Trust NA
Co-Trustee-Layne Michal £aplar. 1991 Trust NA
| Trustee-Mark A Wlintz Grantor Trust 100% as Trustee
| Trustee aivd Primary Beneficiary-MFM 2012 STIRS Trust 100% as Trustee

Trustee #nd Primary Beneficlary-Morris F. Mintz 2012 Family
Trust (created under the Saul Mintz and J=an Mintz 2042 Family

Trust Agreeiment) 100% as Trustee
Trustee and Primary Beneficiary-Morris £. Mintz Z014Family

Tiust (created under the Saui Mint2 and Jean Mintz 2012 Famiiy

Trust Agreemanit and Resoluiion datad January 1, 2014) . 100% as Trustee
Co-Trustee-Sally Mintz Mann Children's Class Trust NA
Trustea-Sarak: Gail Mintz 2014 Grantor Trust _ 100% as Trustee
Co-Trustae-Saul A. Miniz Children's Trust , NA
Co-Trustee-Saul A. Mintz Children’s Trust No.2 ] NA
Co-Trustee-Sivivi-AEIM 2010 Trusi 5 NA
Co-Trustee-The Carolyn ¥aplan 2063 Family Frust NA
Ca>-Trustee The Carolyn M. kaplan Chiidren’s Class Trust . Na,

I Morgig I, Mingz. the oslew signed Progressive Bancozp, Inc, Director, Exccutive Officer or
Principal Sveurities Hulder, do hercdy cortify that the abow listed mformaation is true and
coraplete as of the date set forth below. T furtlie: ackuowledgy that the abtve informetion may be
uszd both internally for intéma! and/or complicncs audititg purposes and vill be made available
for fidieral and/or state regulztory review,

I acknowledge mny rusponsibility io keep the Holding Conpany informed, o a timely basiy, of

any new relationships, changes in relatonships or cessatioa of relatiouships which may aftect the
cbove provided inforration befory I exooute a future + orlshest.

_', "',,_—-.f*;f‘“:‘ —December 51, 2017
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